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HISTORY OF ELSBERRY

The first white men ever o have
an opportunity to view 1ihe site of
Elsherry were the explorers Father
Marquette and Louis Joliet {for whom
Joliet, Illinois is mamed). With five
French voyageurs they eame dewn
the Missisgippl River {:v: Canada
in two birch bark ecanoes hoping vo
find the great river emplying info
the Pacific Ocean, the passage fo
Tndia for which Columbus was Toolk-
ing in 1492, To their dizsappointwent
they found it emptied into the Gulf
of Mexico instead of the Bay of
GSarremento.

Imte 1in  June, 1873 they
gkirted the banks opposite Elsberry
and 2 day or two later dizcovered thc
mouth of the Missouri River, dis-
charging a vast torrent of muddy
water and uprooted trees into the
placid waters of the Mississinpl.
A gtatue of the great Jesuit priest
in polished marble stands today In
the Hall of Fame in the Capitol at
Washington, the gift of the State of
Wisconsin to the nation.

Tater hunters and trappers came
through the Hilsberry couniry from
time to time but permanent settlers
did not arrive until after the Revolu-
tion. Most of those drifted on down
to Yaint Charles or Saint Louis and
the few hardy pioneers who built
eabing were driven out by Black
Hawk and his Indian allies prior to
#he cloge of the War of 1812,

INDIAN ABORIGINES

The local tribes were the Sauvk
(Sac) and Fox Indians, members of
the Algonqguin family, They were
part of the confederacy organized
by Tecumseh and his brother, “The
Prophet”, at the great Indian con-
clave, June 26, 1812 and their chiefs,
writh the Tepresentatives of ten
other aliied tribes, signed the famous
ireaty with the United States Com-

1issioners at Portage des Sioix in
Saint Charles County, of which Lin-
coln County was then a part, in 1816,

They were a nomadic people amd
moved their teepees from place fo
place as the seasons, pastures, and
hunting grounds called them. They
jnhabited the bluffs along the streams
and descended into the bottom lands
lonly to hunt and fish and when the
land was first cleared and eultivated
by the early setilers their arfifacts
were found in abundance., For many
years a profusion of flint arrow
points, knives and granite axes left
by them and their predecessors, the
mound builders, appeared in the
plowed grounds adjacent to Ilsberry.
Tneited by the English they com-
mitted many atrocities dwring the
early wars but in compliance with
the Treaty of Portage des Hicux mov-
ed West, and small pox and other
white man's diseases, to which they
had not developed Immunity, decim-
ate¢ many of the tribes almost %o
the point of extinction.

THE FRENCH

The first documentary acquisitions
of land in the vieinity of Elsherry
were the Spanish grants. The French
were the first to visit Missouri and
LaSalle whe crossed the Mississippi
near St. Touis, but did not come as
far north as Elsberry, took formal
possession of the counlry hy right
of discovery April 9, 1682 in the
name of Louis XIV, and in his honor
named it Louisiana. And Louistana
it has remained ever since. But the
French were explorers and adven-
crers and left Tew permanent settle-
menis. The only loeal record of their
britiiant era remains today in the
pames of streams and geographical
localities, sueh as Cape an Gris,
Cnivre River, St. Charles, Burboise,
Charette, and Portage des Siomx.
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THE SPANISH

French oceupation was short lived
and on November 3, 1762 France by
a secret treaty ceded Louisiana and
New Orleans to 1Spain in compensa-
kion for heavy losses susiained by
Spain as France’s ally in the Seven
Years War. By that treaty the site
of Elsbherry became a Spanish pos-
session and the country along tha
Mississippi from Canada to the Gulf
was lknown as New Spain.

During this period +the Spanish
grant on which Eisberry is located
(Survey 1706) was made to Pierre
Chouteau, January 8, 1798 by Hie
Exgellency, Don Zenon Trudean,
Lieutenant Governor of Upper Louis-
iara, under the CGovernment of the
Kingdom of Spain. It ecousist
el of a lsague square of
land containing 7,055 arpents, was
located “om the River 8t Austin®
(Lost Creek) and ran North te the
“River 8t. Antonis” (Papge’s Branch).
From. this 7,066 arpents was carved
the prezent site of Elsberry.

Pierre Chouteau was of pure
¥rench exiraction and wes born in
MNew Orleans. His brogher, Augustn
{Shovuteau, cooperated with Lacléde i
the establishment of 8t Louis in
1764 nnd took over the managemeni
of the enterprise after Laclede’s
death. Both brothers svent the re-
mainder of their Uves m 8t Louis
and became men ¢f prominence and
wealth,

The Freneh name Pierre Choutean
is writlen “Peter” Choutean in the
English versicns and “Don Padro”
Cheuntean in the Yparish, just as the
name of the graniee ip the adjzcent
Survey of 1760 is written Guillermo
Pealnter in the origiral \Spanish grant
and William Palmer in the English
translation. (The south line of Sui-
vey 1706 is the north line of Survey

1760). ]
Williami Palmer had served under
Napoleon and on his retirement was
rewarded with a grant of land (Sur-
vey 1760) in Loulsiana and eame to
Ameriea to claim it but doezx not
seem to have visited it again after
its tirst survey, His son, Alexis Pal-
mer, however assumed possession
early in the century and gpent the
remeinder of his life there. And
William Palmer, Jr., son of Alexis
snd grandson of William Palnizr, the
original grantee, inherited a portien
of the traet and subzequently plays
an important jpart in this narrvative.
The Epanish spent large suins of
money vainly frying to  colonize
Louisiana, during which time they
gave Daniel Boone 850 acres and
appointed him syndie (Justice of the
Peace} to induce him to come to St.
Charles County (which then included
Linceln County) from Kentucky, and
after heavy losses, finally coded

-Louisiana hack to France by the

Treaty of San Ildefonso, Apnl 39,
1800. And Swurvey 1706 and Kls-
bemy were again F'rench Terrizory.

Napeleon was preparing for war
with England and was desperately in
need of mmoney. Nelson had aanihil-
ated his fleet at Trafalgar ang Eag-
Heh ships were hovering in the Gulf
of Mexico ready to seize Naw Or-
leans and Louisiana, By a briiiiant
20up Napoleon sold Loniziana Aprit
30, 1802, to the United States for
fifteen million doflars, and theresy
prevented the conquest of Lowiwiana
by the FEnglish and at the Saie
time seeured funds for the English
war. And the future Tisberry was
al last a part of the United States
of Ameriea.

The territory was formally frans-
forred to the United States, at St.
Louis, December 20, 1803 by an
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elaborate ceremony in which Lieut-
enant Governor Delassus represent-
mg Napoleen,, lowered the French
colors and Csaptain Soulavd, repres-
enting  President Jefferson, rais-
sd the Stars and Sivipes. And
Congress on April 12, 1814 enacted
a statute under which Survey 176G,
Survey 1760 and other Spanish sur-
veys, were confirmed fo their originsl
grantees, Peter Choutean and ‘Wil-
liam Paimar, and others,

By act of Congress the Territory
of Touisiana became the Terrvitory
of Missouri in 1812 and shoriiy
thereafter Governor William Clark,
nnder Congressional authority, pro-
claimed 8t. Charles as a county
peaching from the Missouri River
on the south to the British Domin-
ions on the north, and from the
TMississippi River on the east to the
Pacific Ceean on the west, which
naturally ineluded Elsberry.

From this area the Territorial Leg-
islature, meeting at St. Charles, then
the eapitol of the State, established
Lincoln County, Deeember 14, 1813
and named it for Gen Benjamin Lin-
coln, a revolutiomary soldier. And on
August 10, 1821, by act of Congress
and on the proclamation of President
Monroe, Missouri was admitted as a
State to the Union. And for the
first time it eould be Elsberry, Mis-
souri, U. S. A.

During the infervening years title
to various parts of Survey 1706 had
passed by purchase or inheritence to
warious owhers until in 1868 the
present site of Wlsbherry with outly-
ing land was bought by R. T. Els-
berry from the heirs of Nelson Watts
who had held it for many years.

NELSON WATTS

Nelson Watts was a8  wealthy

bachelor and owned many slaves, He

in Lineoln County, which was situ-
ated on the hill side sloping down
from the east to the “Biuff Road”
{now Tth Street) about where the
Chureh of God in Christ now stands.
Fis orchard, in which, according ta
the custom of the times, he and his
slaves were buried, sextended east
from the Bluff Road =nd ineciuded
the land now owned by Mrs. Bdward
Mayes. When South 6th Street was
surveyed through it from Broadway
to Lost Cresk, the new street bisected
beth the orchard and the burying
ground and for many years the
limestone markers could be seen in
the middle of the street. His own
grave was enclosed by a high brick
wall which unfortunately served as a
convenient quarry for any oceasional
brick needed now and then and
which through long attrition has now
completely dizappeared but the mar-
ble headstone, which still lies coverad
with dust and debris between the
margin of the street and the side-
wallk in the second block from
Broadway, bears the Iinscription:
“Nelson Watts, borm in Alhemarle
County, (Virginia), Mareh 12, 1790,
died March 2, 1868.7 Hiz will left to
“my servant Emaline” all of hiz land
lying west of the Bluff Road, now
comprising a large part of west
Elsberry including “Piniky”. The
remainder of his estate was left to
his Dbrothers wand sisters who are
named in the abstracts covering this
tract.

At the sale of his effects held at

the brick house, a number of books
sold for sums ranging from one bit
(12%c) to three bits (37%e) each.
But as the auctioneer was waving
the last book, as he cried the sale,
it slipped from his hand and fell
and from its open leaves fluttered

lived in the first brick house built
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examination of the rest of the books
siowed greenbacks in  various
amounts in all of them which were
recovered Tor the estate. The nsarest
hank was in St Louis and pecple
of the iime were accustomed to
segquester their cash in such conven-
jent hiding places aboui the pre-
mises.

Nelson Watts had come to Dis-
souri following his elder brother Cap-
tain William Watts who had been
thorn at the family homestead in
Virginia but later had setiled at
Iartsville, Tennessee where he en-
gaged in the slave trade and wes
owner and capbain of a Mississippi
steamboat. Hence his title of “Cap-
tain.” But eventually he sold his
steamer and his business and, with
his household effects and his dom-
estic servants, followed the Bluff
Read north in the spring of 1823
prospeching for a favorable location
o establish a home Wwhere ha could
gpend his declining years. Late ong
afternoon he camped on a hill on
what is now a part 9f the Govern-
ment Nurscry, near the intersection
of the Bluff Road wifh what.is now
Highwoy 79. Rising the next moin-
ing he looked around and locafed a
spring, an indispensible adjunct to
the pioneer home, and decided this
was the promised land, and bought
the tract from the heirs of Alexis
Palmer.

William Watts born in Virginia in
1782, had married Nancy Wom-
mack, of Halifax Coumty, Virginia,
whose brother Capt. Richard Woum-
mack (1804-1880), came to Missouri
in October of 1823."Captain Wom-
mack became sheriff of Lincoln
County, representéd the County
in the Legislature, for four terms,
and was a very bprominent man,

Willlam Watts died in 1837, In his

will he left all his property to his
wife but provided that the slaves
should be pareelled out at her dis-
cretion among the children named
helow. As was the custom, the will
provided that sll negro children were
to bz geparated from their mothers
at the age of 4 years and sent to
ona of the other heirs.

He is buried on a little knoll across
the Blaff Road from hiz fermer resi-
dence in a family cemetery on the
Forest Kecling Nursery land. He left
eight children:

Seneca Watts (1812-18%7) was
married in 1835 to Nancy I{emper
(1614-1908), daughter of Martin and
Rosamond Kemper and was  the
grandfather of Ewing I, Walls, who

avas for b0 yeavs a prominent pus- - -

iness man in Elsberry.

Eliza Ann Watts (1801-1879) mar-
ried Franels Marion Tauckett (1702-
1838) and was the great-grand-
mother of Mrs, L. W, Crank.

Wesley Watts (1804-1841)

Gabrilla Watts, (1814-1880) who
married  Joseph Conn  Wilkinson
(1816-1876) was the great-great-

grandmother of Mrs, Waldo Cannon
and Lee Franeis Ligon. She was first
married to Jordan Gibson, and had
one son by the former marriage,
William N. Gibson (184G), merchanri
of Talmouth, a noted Union agent
during the Civil Wazr.

Arzilla Watts was born in 1816
and married Charles Ferry, a veleran
of the Black Hawk War who received
ns pay for his milifary service in
that war a warrant for the land on
which he spent the remainder of
hig life. He was the grandfather
of J. W. Ferry and the father of
Miss Jennie Ferry, whose entry of
a single turkey gobbler took first
prize at the Chicago World's Fair in
1904 as the finest bird of its class
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4n the world.

Burdilla Watts, born in 1819, mar-
ried Leander (Lec) Hammack, the
grandfather of David H. Hammack,
an attorney in Mount Vernon, Wash-
ington.

Caucyra Watts, born in 1826, mar-
rvied Mary A, MeQueen and was the
grandfather of Thomay Watis.

Mordecai R. Watts, born in 1822,
married Mary Amanda Hammack in
1846 and was the grandfather of
Mrs. W. E. Long. At one time he
owned the entire town of Falmouth,
all residences, warehouses, boat office

and  landings, stores, exiensive
wtables, bars and hotel, with 145
acres of adjacent land, left as a

ghost town after the T, 8. Engineers
destroyed the harbor and made it
dmjposgible for boats to land there.
He moved the hotel, a commodions
building, with broad verandas over-
looking the Misgissippl, considered
one of the finest of its kind in the
‘eourty, to the corner of B5th and
DuBoeis streets in Elsberry where it
is today the residence of Dr. C. B.
- Lindsay,

This family, the William Watts
Family, inherited the Nelson Watls
farm on which the City of Elsberry
is built. Through the executor, Mox-
decai R. Watlts, the family sold the
farm to R. T. Elsberry, Iater to be-
come the Founder of the City.

RAILRCGAD ERA

In the meantime the nation was
becoming transportation conscious.
Fieet-footed teams with buggies and
gurreys, on gravel roads, were sup-
erceding the ox teams which had
browght +the pioneers to Missouri.
And the steamboat which had bre-
nght civilization fo remote vivers
was giving way to the steam loco-
motive, In 186% the Uniecn Pacific

completed the first transcontinental

railway from Baltimore to Ssn
Franeisco, The same year the Clarks-
ville and Western Railway Company
was organized at Clarksville and
built twelve miles of track norch-
ward. On January 11, 1870 the road
was incorporated to commect witk
the Chicago & Alton at Louisiana,
And on April 29, 1871 the charter
was amended to provide for an ex-
tension south, The same year three
enterprising businessmen of Clarks-
viille, John O, Eoberis, William M,
McIntosh and Henry 8. Carroll, con-
ceiveq the idea of supplementing the
¢ity's river traffic with wail trans-
portation, Mobilizing the financial
resources of the dommunity they un-
dertock ths seemingly impossible
task of providing both persomnel and
money for a railroad paralieling the
Mississippl River to connect with
the Wabash Railroad at Dardenne
(St. Peters) running between St
Louis and Kansas City.

In December of 1875 eonstruction
of the 8t. Louis, XKoeknk and North-
western railway south from Hannibal
began. The line was completed to
Clavksville in January of 1877 and a
round house wag built at Clarksville
from which, commencing February
1, 1877 trains ran to Hannibal.

Immediately after the formation of
Clarksville and Western Railroad the
Cumpany contracted with Hemry
Rust, contractor, by whom the rail-
road was completed and operated
1ntil the amount expended by him
m eompleting the road was returned.

The extension of the road south
from Clarksville met with disastrous
ohstacles. The construection of brid-
ges across local streams, notably
Bryant’s Creek and Guinn’s Creek,
proved more difficult and cosily than
had heen anticipated. Much of the
land was being cleared Brushpiles,
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logs, cordwood and railroad fies lif-
tered the floors of the valleys drain-
ed by the water courses and the
first freshet piled vast heaps of
debris against the bridpes and rail-
road embankments which choked the
outlets and inundated adjacent lands
destroying erops ang drowning live-
stock. The enraged farmers burned
the obstruetions anrd the bridges
with them. And when replaced burn-
ed them again. It was only after
long and ecosily negoiiation and ex-
sert engineering of the loeale, that
orderly sonstruction could be resum-
ed.

It seams incredible that three men
conld be found of such vigion and
courage and resource as the three
romarkable amen who picneeved the
Clarksville and Western Railway. It
is to be regretted that more is not
known azbout them.

John O. Roberts seems .to have
usually taken ths initiative. He was
the prime mover in the building of
the first toll roads in Pike county
and may be said to havs been the
Father of the system of hard sur
faced roads which iatgr becamg fam-
ous thronghout the state and’ whict
wore the scene of théd imiermational
bieyele races reporbed in detail by
every metropolitan newspaper i the
naticn.

He was morried to Miss Malvins
M. Tibbetts, the courtship origin
ating when Miss Malvina, having
rendered his mether some, specia
favor, and being presged by Mus.
Roberts to know how she could re
turn the favor, Malvina said “You
may give me John!’ Mr. Roberte
was primarily a grain merchant and
a miller although he was 2 man
of meny interests and was in part-
nership at various thnes and in
various enterprises with both Be-

Intosh and Carrell,
William M. McIntosh was perhaps

the outstanding merchant of the city.

His mother, Mrs. Millie MeIntosh
was @ popular woman, of literary
tastes and widely read, but a nof-
oriousgly poor housekeeper. It was
zaid that she read books “to keep
her heart young” while the heds
remained
unvwashed.

Henry 8. Carroll married Wiss
Luey Clifford. With B. P, Clifford,
his brother-in-law, and John Q. Rob-
erts, he participated in the founding
of the Clifford Banking Company at
Clarkeville, June 1, 1871, It was
shrough this banking institution lhat
the finaness of the Clarksviile &
Weastern Railway Compsny were ad-
miniatered,

Incidental to the bu'lding of the
roadhed +was the Ioeation cof sta-
tions, the aequisition of land for
town sites and sale of lots to provide
funds for the ever-emply exchequer
of the Company. Loeal travel was
by wagen or horsback. Roads were
nrimitive. Progress made in z day’'s
travel was limited especially in the
spring months when ths roads were
litile more than guagmires. So if
wag deciled to ostablish the sta-
tiong fonr miles apart and for many
wears thal seemed a rezsonable dis-
tance. Accordingly, the engineers
were instructed to drive a stake
avery four miles along the read the
landowner on whose farm the stake
hap-ened to fzll was approached
with a propositicn under which the
vailroad sgreed to locate the “town”
on his farm and survey and plot the
metrepelis, in retmyn for a deed
to every other lot. Lots thus deeded
to the Compsny were sold to pros-
pective citizens and the proceeds used
to meet weekly construetion pay-

unmade and the dishes
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wolls. The farmer was free to sell
his half of the lots and retain the
proceads as his profit in the enter-
[prise.

The first stake south of Clarks-
ville was driven on the land of
James H. Kissinger. The embryo town
was named for him and a station was
built and sireets laid out but with
the exception of a store, an elevator
aznd a blacksmith shop, the city failed
to materialize and today saven the
station has been abandoned by the
railroad and is now utilized as a
residence.

The second stake dropped on land
bhelonging to Ephriam Jameson who
mamed the fown for hiz two small
daughters, Miss Ann  Jameson and
‘Miss Ada Jameson, and called
it Annada, It was beiter
located and far enought from
Clarksviiie and Paynesville +to
escape Deing smothered dy com-
petition, and while growth was slow
it eventually developed into a busy
and permanent bailiwick.

The third stake was driven on the
faorm of John D. Dameron and the

town was named for him. At
one time it  Thandled large
quantities of grain and  live-
stoelc, had several stores and a

number of residences and supplied
the needs of g fertile neighborhoed.
But in the end the proximity of
Elsherry and the improvement of
the roads ecurtailed business and
it is today only a whistle stop.

The fomrth stake mei the most in-
hogpitable reception of any along
the entire length of the road from
Clarksville to 8t. Peters,

To understand the situation in
connection with the location of the
fourth stake it is necessary to make
a brief survey of the adjoining fer-
rain in the eventful yesr of 1879.

F ELSBERRY

THE FOURTH STAKE

Only one through north-and-south
road traversed the entire area he-
tween

New Hope, It was known as the
Bluff Road becanse it hugged the
contour of the limeslore bluffs par-
alleling the river and followed the
old Indian trail which the earliest
settlers found when they reached
Migsourli. The Indians in turn had
merely uflilized paths made by the
deer, the most expert highway eng-
ineers in history. These deer 4rails
were too narrow to permit travel
gide by side and fhe Indians al-
ways trotted along in single file,
Hence the term “Indian file.” The
only change made by the pioneers
for many years was to widen them
sufficiently to accommodate a wagon
and in 1879 the Bluff Road was
atill the original Indian trail with
trees =nd underbrush cut here and
there to admit two-horse traffic.
Ztail fences restricted it now and
then but much of it was unfenced
and ran f{hrough heavy white oak
forest. Coming south it crossed
Page’s Branch at the present eross-
ing and then furned west of thes
present road pagsing Immediately
west of the home of Dr. James Long,
iater the home of R E. Black, now
the residence of Dy, P, C. Chamber-
lain, and then on down what is
now Tth street past the brick house
of Nelson Watts to Lost Creck where
a ford crossed diagonally southwest;
thenee on over the hill to what is
now the north entrance of the
Government Nursery, Here it pas-
sed across where the gate now stands,
infersected the Falmouth-New Hope
Road and angled down the hill o
the present eulvert across Union
Branch.

the Mississippi River and
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It was wup this rcad that
William Watts cama seeking a home.
And it was at the ford across Lost
Creck on #his road that Rawleigh
Meaves, the great-grandfather of
Mayvor E. R. Whiteside, bent on =z
gimilar m'ssicn in 1838, camped his
first night in the primeval wild-
erness and early the next morning
shot two deer which had eome down
through the forest te drink.

Neither the present Elsherry-MHew
Hope 1oad nor Highway 70 were
then in existence. Two through ronds
ran  east and west, The Browns
#Mill Road which left the River at
{the Hamburg Landing and largely
followed its present course to and
past a grist mill erectag by 2an
carly setfler by the name of Brown
in the vicinity of Touisville.

The major east-snd-west road ex-
tendeg from Fahnouth to New Hope
and then on west to Atburn. It
crossed a bridge which  spanned
King’s Lake and intersected the site
of the zailroad south of Highway
JJ, the present farmito-market read,
passed bebtween the residence and
the barn of “Uncle " Biilly Palmer,”
through the yard anfl over the ex-
ach site of the present F. H. Hage-
meier home, crossed Lost Creek a
hundred yards below the Big Rock
opposite the R. T. Mayes place and
through the Richard :Crank farm on
to New Hope. Falmouth was the
Liverpool of that. section of the
country and all freight, mevchandise
and supplies were shipped by boat
from St, Louis to Falmouth and haul-
ed from there io New Hope and
Anburn by ox wagorts, The road was
impassable in March and except to
horseback riders the road was praci-
dcally closed during the spring rains.

Gne of the staple commodities of
the times was bourbon whiskey ship-

F ELSBERRY

pad from the Kentucky -distller-
Mississippi to Falmouth for the Fal-
meuth, New Hope and Auburn
zalcons, Al drivers carried gimlets,
and gtraws were found in sbund-
aiice zlong the rcadside. The pract-
ice was to hammer op the iron bar-
rel hoops, bora a small hole with
the gimlet and insert a straw. The
hole was then plugzed and ths hoop
driven hack into place leaving no
avidence of the happy interlude
Sometimes the driver knew when he
veached MNew Hope and sometimes
he did net.
TOWN GF NELSGN

At the crest of the bluff on the
Browns Mill Road was the village
of Nelson, named for Nelson Wattz
on whose farm a gart of it was
built, It econsisted of the gereral
stove of Elsherry and Wilkinzon (R,
T. Elsberry and James C. Wilkingeon,
his son-in-law), a drug store opuUr-
ated by Bill Gibson whose principal
steck in trade was Dr. RulPs Bit-
ters, “guaranteed 68% aleohol, a
popular specific recommended for
all maladies affecting the human
tace, the furniture store of Tully R.
Goodman, Hanry Leo’s blacksmith
shop, the carpenter shop of A.
A, Brothers and Sons, a commereial
saw mill and several residenses, Dr,
W. A. Hemphill, a young praestition-
er, was a silent partner in the fur-
niture store and had his office there.
The Nelson post office was estab-
lished September 7, 1877 and moved
te Elskerry, August 28, 1879. James
C. Wilkinson was the first and only
postmaster, An envelope hearing the
Nelson postmark is still in existence.

After removal of the post office

fiom Nelson to Elsherry, Wil
kmson who had been appoint-
ed, September 17, 1877, econ-
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tinued to serve until April 2§, 1880
when he was succeeded by Dr. W,
A. Hemphill. The postmasters at
Blsberry have been as fellows:

James €. Wilkinson, Aungust 23,
1879, .

Willilam A. Hemphill, April 26,
1880,

Anderson David Shipp, January 17,
1882,
- William A, Hemphill, May 3, 1882,

Herman H. Rsuter, December 18,
1852

Joseph W. Bibb, BSeptember 256,
1885.

Anderson T, Shipp, April 26, 1889.

Manford Burley, July 80, 18€9.

Blufford 8. Camnon, August 10,
1893.

William A. Ulery, July 28, 1897.

William B. Ellis, January 19, 1916,

Bertha D. Marling, September 1,
1924,

Roy M. Burchett, October 10, 1933.

Gordon Crank, February 1, 19432,

James M. Powell, February 15,
1945,

TOWN OF CR(OSS RCADS

A second hamlet, known generzlly
as “The Cross Roads” but officially
designated as “Lost Cresk” by the
poetal authorities, was located at
the interseetion of the Bluif Road
with the Flamouih-New iHope Road.
It was built on land owned by Wil-
liam Palmer, one-time postmaster,
and included the general siore of
Wigginton and Weleh (R, T. Wig-
ginton and B. C. Welch), the usual
ubignitous blacksmith shop, operated
by Dosh Gilliland who had married
one of the Palmer daughters, and
several residences.

This was the original post office
in Hurricane Township and served
this seetion of Lincoln and Piks
Counties continuously for more than
26 years. The post office at New
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Hope, for many wyeary the second
largest community in the county, was
established July 19, 18387. But the
post office at Lost Creek (The
Cross Roads) was inangwrated Ju'y
2, 1833. The mail wasg delivered and
dispatched by pouch carried on the
river packels and brought out to the
Cross Roads by courier. The office,
gomrelimes In a residence znd sowe-
times in the gereral gstore, was loo-
ated approximately at where the
novth gate o the Government Nur-
sery now stands. The postmasters
were:
William Waits, July 2, 1833.
Norborne Woolfolk, June 22, 1835,
Benjamin Vance, September 9, 1836,
Joseph Turnham, March 16, 1839,
Benjamin Vance, May 19, 1339.
John Wilkinsen, January 1, 1840.
William Watts, March 19, 1840.
James Vance, February 4, 1842,
Seneca Watts, January 5, 1849,
Pr, T. R. Hawkins, April 9, 1849,
Nelsen Watts, February 10, 1851,
William Palmer, December 3, 1853,
John R. Thompson, January 12,
1858. Thompson served until October
4, 1856 when the office was finally
discontinued.
LGST CREEK
But the principal feature of the
aver-all fopography of the region
was Lost Creek which left its
present channel at the foot of what
is now Tth Street and turned north
across 6th sireet and eircled around
the foot of the hill on the Edward
Mayes property and then ran due
north crosging Broadway and DuBois
streets along 3rd Sireet, then known
ns Nelson street, fturning east in
Block 13 and then south, crossing
Broadway the second time about
where two garages on either side of
Broadway now stand. It conlinued
gouth to a point g little below Lhe
mill and then erossed the prescnt
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vight of way of the reilroad iido
the R. BE. Black field whare
gpread out in numerouws smaller
channels and wae entively losi. Hence
the name “Lost Creek.”

It was in the center of this swampy
morass that the engineers drove the
gtake marking the fomrth towa site
south of Clarksviile. Water from the
Eiver regularly covered the site every
“Iune rise” and in 1877 came out
three times. Steamboats landed ard
loaded wheat on the exact site of
the present Elsberry Banking Com-
pany Building, now owned by J. B.
Canncn. Men frequently rowed ovel
from Falmouth. The engineers re-
ported to dhe Clarksville office bthal
a town at this point was out of tho
question. Bui ftha trimmvirate wers
adamant. There must be no deviation
from the four mile rule.

However, at last impressed by the
accounts of the surveyors and eon-
struction foreman, the three came
down and affer a convineing inspee-
tiorn, welnetantly agreed that the
swamp and the c¢reek constituted
an insurmountable barrier.

In a bedy, accoppanied by iheir
staff, the three men éalled on
William Palmer who owned the next
farm south of {he stake, now a part
of the Government Nursery. He met
them graciously. He was in high
fettle. He had already tasted binod.
He had sold farm land as town lois
for the Cross Roads buildings, He
envigioned the possibilities of a rall-
voad town on his farml Aad he
langhed uproariously’ when they
submitted their usual proposition of
the town site in refurn for half the
town lots. “You cap build the town
here if you like” he said. *As a mat.
ter of fact it is the only place you
can build it. Everything north of
my land is a swamp. South of it is
the bluff. You've got to put your

I

T
i

OF ELSBERRY

town on my farm. But you will pay .
for every foot of Iland you take—
even Tor your depot.”? .

Dismayed they took a second look
at the original site and Bs water-
sogked stake. Bul finances were low.
The treasurey was depleted. Tn des-
peration they hunted uwp B, T. Els-
berry the owner of the land and sub-
mitted {heir prepesal. “Why, of
courze” gaid “Uncle Bob” “Go right
ahead.”

Farly the next morning men were
blasting off the ledge of the bluff
in front of what is now the Bank
of Lineoln County, and pulling down
the banks to smoeth the road for
vehicles up and down Broadway. A
temporary bridge was thrown across
the <creek at Broadway and Third
Sirveet. The split rail fence running
north along what i3 now fourth
street was pulled down and a couple
of ghoek rows of corn cut through
the eorn field from the bridge to the
Bluff Road and the corn shocks
moved back., At the east end board
walks eleven feet high and ten feet
wide were built across the ereek om
hobh sides of Broadway over to the
“depot.” A hurried frip 1o Troy
secured an order from the Counby
Court and Edwin E. Whiteside, (1832~
1399), the local road overseer, grest
great grandfather of Raneite Pea- .
rel, started with ox teams plowing
a straight line due east from the
Lost Creck ford out inte the prairie
towards XKing's Lake. The original
channel was then closed with timber
and stone and the first heavy rain
washed a straight channel through
along the line between Surveys 1706
and 1760 where it remained for
many years, until diverted by the !
diversion eanal of the Elsherry
Drzinage Distriet. ;

Uncle Billy Palmer rode over on'
his saddle horse and watched the |
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proceedings incredulously and then
retorned home and in his chargin
and disappointment took to his bed
and remained there for a week. Buf
for his misealeulation there would
have been no Elsbherry. The city
would have been Palmer, and Broad-
way wouid have extended west
through his farm half way between
TLost CUreek and the Bluff. On what
small mpivets the course of empire
{urns!

A stampede followsd. Almost over-
pight every building in Nelson and
the Crozs Roads was torn down and
moved %o the new town. Buildings
were moved from Falmouth and
stores and shoss were moved in
from New Hope, Clarksville, Curry-
ville and Louisigna, Tt was the first
and only railroad in Lincoln or Cal-
houn counties and excitement mount-
ed sz the first traing came through,
and again when the loeal road he-
came a part of the Chicago, Burling-
ton and Quiney Railroad system In
December, 1880. The site was un-
propiticus but Uncle Billy had let
the day of salvation pass by.

Because Spanish syrveys 1706 in
which the Elsherry land is located
and 1760 in which the Palmer land
is situsted are so clessly releted,
bath gsographically and historieally,
it 1z pertinent to note the back
ground of both,

Owr Williamm Palmer here was the
son of Alexis Palmer and the grand-
son of Guillermo (William) Palmer,
& svperannmiated French soldier in
the Nepoleonic wars to whom Na-
poleon Eonaparte, in 1798 (confirm-
ed by Congress in 1804) had granted
a league sgaare of land, known as
Survey 1760. Guillermo Palmer never
resided on the land, which was at
the time of the grant an unbroken

i wilderness. He lived and died on 40
. arpents of land which he purchased

May 4, 1797 in Carondelet, a small
French village on the Missiseippi
River z short distanee below Bt
Louis, long since incorporated az &
part of that city, and iz buried in
old Fee Fee Cemelery in St. Louis
County. His son Alexis Palmer was
the first to oceupy the land and he
and his son, the William Palmer of
this narrative, spent their lives here
and both are buried in the family
cemetery enclosed in the Federal
reservation, ’

William Palmer was not in high
favor with his nelzhbors. He and
William M. Gibson, of Falmouth,
were local agents for the Union and
cooperated with the three county
commissioners appointed to admin-
ister what amounted 4Ho military
government of the county, while the
regt of the people of the section
were largely Southern sympathizers
and =ent sons to the Confederate
army. One of the commissioners,
Jogeph Winston Sition, born in Ten-
nessee, in 1808, owned a farm on
the Browns Mill Road. Duaring the
later days of the Civil War, he
was Tor a thme with the northern
troops in the South., About a year
after the close of the war a fall
stranger with heavy beard got off
the stesmer at Falmouth and in-
quired guardedly where he might
find 2 man by the name of Winston
Bitton. On getting directions he sec-
ured a horse from the livery stable
and started out to the Sitton farm.
Bill Gibson, who had been keeping
the stranger under surveillance since

his grrival, put a negro boy on his

race hovse and sent him through a
by-read with a note. The boy reach.
ed the farm first and when the note
was delivered Sitton rushed to the
house, packed a carpet bag and was
not seen again for move than a year.

During the war a digtinguizh-
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ed looking man appeared cne after-
noon in Falmouth and after making
a slow circuit of the business dist-
rict stopped in Bill Gibson’s saloon
and ordered a drink. He then saun-
tered down the street and entered
the store of R. T. Wigginton and
Company where he fook a chair by
the stove. Bill following eclosely to
Jearn the identity of the stranger,
took 2 seat beside him and started
abusing old Abe Lineoln, “Lissus”
Grant and other Union dignitaries,
The stranger remained silent. Wig-
winton, sitting on the other side
of the stove moved around until the
stove pipe was between him and
Bill, and looking significantly at the
stranger slowly shoole his head, Afier
a while Bill despairing of geiting
any informeation left the store and
the siranger spoke for the first
time. “I've got to get across the
river” he whispered. Rube Wigegin-
ton, who had volunteered for Price’s
Army and had been insirucled to
awaif orders—which never came due
to Price’s disastrous dafest at the
battle of Westpert near Xansas
City—had never scen or heard of
the stranger but he saidt “Wait
for moonlipht at thé first sycamore
that hangs over the river below
town.” Just as the moon eame up
he drifted down the river in a skiff
and rowed the man acress io the
Illincis side, where. he got out of
the skiff and dissppeared in the
underbrush withoiitt conversation or
explanation. d

Several months later a family dri-
ving into town over the MNew Hope
Road reported soldiers at the bridge
zeross King's Leké and Bill Gibsen
promptly ordered ‘his race horae
saddled and rode ot to look into the
matter. A few minutes later there
was @ fusilade of ghots and Bill
came in sight bending low en the
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neck of his flying horse pursued by-
a sguadvon of Southern ecavaly,
When he reached town he wheeled
inte the side road leading north and
through the fleetness of his horse
eseaped, Immediately the bush-
whacleers swarmed  through  the
streets pillaging and lining up all
the men they encountered on the
sidewalks. But as they rushed into
Wigginton and Company’s store and
began to pull goods from the shelves,
there was an explosion of author-
itative orders and the Captain in
commardd, the stranger who had been
put aewoss the river, stood there
directing the return of everything
that had been removed and placing
a puard at all doors and windows
with instruetions to shoot anybody
entering the premises without a
nass.

Columbus Harvey, a brother of .
F. Harvey, one of the founders of
the Bank of Lincoin County, serving
in the Confederate Army, came homs
on g furlough and was reported by
an informer to be at the home of
his father, Francis Harvey on Bry-
anf’s Creek, Orders came from Troy
to ring Rebel Lum Harvey in. Cap-
=ain Thomaz A. Reed, great-grand-
father of Mrs, Tiarold McKay, of
Edina, and later Mayor of RElsberry,.
one of the most distinguished men:
i the seckion, was out of the
eounty at the time and First Licuten-
ant Wm, D. Jamison, the grand--
father of J. B, Cannon, was ordered
to tske a detachment to the Harvey-
Farm ‘and bring Lum baek “dead or-
alive,” “Bill Dave" refused to ac-
cept the order unless he was allowed
to gelect the men of his detachment, -
and when granted that privilege, sel-;
wnoted only men of the neighborhood :
who knew the Harvey Family. It‘.'_.i
was then Iate in the sfternvon and;
he ordered his men %o fall out and 1

;
:
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go home and reassemble the mnext
day at the suger camp on the creek
below the Harvey house. The follow-

- ing morning Ideutenant Jamison was

late arviving but his men assembled,
and while waiting for him, noted
great activity at the house. Presently
iliss Mavgaret Elnora Harvey, (1841-
1900) the couragecus daughier of
Francis Harvey, {(1790-1860) and
4he mother of Dr. C. B. Lindsay,
with two brothers in the Confeder-
ate Army, one of whom died at Shil-
oh, ordered her horse saddled and
roda briskly down to the sugar ecamp
and through the men assembled
there, noting all of them and then
turned her horse and came back
ithrough them again, Eventually Bill
Dave came in and led his men up
to the houwse and searched the pre-
mises without finding Lam, of course,
and posted Sergeant John Ferry,
father of our Joe Ferry, ai the head
wof the Auburn lane with instruections
to remain two honrs and then eatch
up with the company., Seeing his
old friend on guard, Lum came out
of the woods and said he was willing
to surrender because he knew he
vrould get a square deal. But Ferry
explained that when they got fo
Troy they would not be in charge
and refused to aceent hisx surrender
and 4old him to get on baclk to his
regpiment, which he did.

‘Less fortunate was Dudley Me-
Queen, another “secessionist” who
came home for a furlough and took
refuge at the Cummains farm near
Paynesville, confident that Cummins,
an old friend, would keep his pre-
gence a secret. But Cumming led the
Home Guard to his hiding place and
they surrounded the buildings and
shot him down summarily.

Later in the war when the revised
draft aet went into effect, many of
the men drafted were gouthen sym-

pathizers., But as the regulations
gave the draftee the option of en-
listing in d¢he Militia, which was
never called out for active serviee,
or paying $30 for & substituie, many
of them fook the easiest way out
and enlisted. The newly enlisted
militiamen were mobilized at New
Hope to organize and elect their cap-
tain. There were two candidates,
William D. Jamison, who was at the
time serving as First Lisutenant in
the old ecompany, and Virgil Sitton,
the son of Major Sitton.

As the crowd prepared to vote, a
small man named Rush jumped up
on the platform and shouted, “Look
at Bil Dave Jamison. What kind of
a caplain would he make? Hvery
damned rebel on the ground is for

im. Vote for Virpil Sitton. He's
the man. He’s my kind of 5 man.
I can tell you where I stand. Every
time a Union man is disturbed I
say go out and gef zix rebels. That
will stop it in a huary.”

Sitton was elected. But as Rush
wallkked out he was handed a letter
without a signature. It said “You
leave town at once. And stay away.
If you ever come back to New Hope
you had betier bring your ecoffin
with you” So far as is known Rush
was never seen again on the streets
of New Hope,

There were five of the Sitton bro-
thers (cazlled Sutten), Winston, Law-
rence, (lifford, James and Major.
Major survived all the brothers. He
lived up the Page road and was a
noted raconteur. When he was re-
ported to be in town all small boys
immediately gravitated to the groc-
ery store or the barber shop where
he sat by the stove surrounded by
his spellbound auvdience while he re-
lated hair raising accounts of bat-
tles with the Indians, dispatching a2

grizzly bear with a barlow lmife or
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nzing small peach seed for ballets
after his ammumition was exhausted,
Space will permit only one typieal
experience of his early days when
the first came to Migsouri. He had
just acquired a new fangled shot
gun with twe barrels and percus-
sion eaps and was trying it out on
a hunting e=zpedition along the bank
of the Missizsippi between the river
and the glough. But hunting was poor
and he had about decided to call it
a day when, with a whir of wings,
about a million prairie chickens flew
in from the west. He wag lifting his
gun 4o fire when he happened to
look towards the river and there
were literally acres of ducks com-
ing in. Then just ahead a magnific-
ent buck suddenly stood at bay with
the finest branch of antlergs he had
ever seen, While he was irying to
make up his mind where to shoot,
he heard a vicious hiss and locked
down, and there almost at his feet
was a huge diamond-backed Migsiss-
ippi Bottom zrattlesnake with vat-
tles -whirring as it preparad to
strike. Startled by the proximity of
the ratiler, he involuntarily pulled
both triggers. Ag hiz gun.was new
he had losded it with double charges
of black gunpowder and both bar-
rels exploded. One barrel with the
entire charge of shot went west and
killed vast numbers of prairie chick-
ens. The other barrel went east and
slaughtered innumerable ducks. The
gun gight drove -ghead and downed
the buck., And fhe ramrod went
straight down and .killed the rat-
tler, In his excitement he fell off
the bank into the slough and when
he waded out one*boot was full of
eatfish and the other boot was full
of perch. He counted the prairie
chickens and the ducks, which drif-
ted to the bank in a strong wind,
and found there were exactly 998

.
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birds, One breatless listener blurted

out: “Mr. Sitton why dew’t Fou
make i an even one thousand?”

“0h,” retorted the Major scormfully,
“T wouldn't lie for ome hird”
The Major was patriotienily infer-
csted in the Elsberry commummnity and
late in lifs when visited on his farm
by the lccal sehool bhoavd which

was fleating a bond izsus to replace!

the erumbling old brick school build-
ing, subscribed for $3005 of the
bonds. He is siill remembered by the
small bhoys of his day for stories
unsurpassed by anything written by
Blark Twain or Bret Harte.

William Palmer was twice mar-
ried, the first time fo the widow
Booth, the mother of Bud Booth,
and ithe second time to the widow
Gilliland nee King, mother of Dosh
Gillitand, Children of the first mar-
riage were Rebecea Palmer who mar-
ried Dosh Gilliland, Cynthia Palmer
who married Elmer E. Brother, son
of A. A, Brother and st one time
Mayor of Elsberry, and Joseph Kin-
liaid Palmer (1862-1936) who married
Mary Emma Cannon in 1889, The two
children by the second marriage
were Lila Palmer who married Wil-
iam W. Omohundro, a prominent
and popular business man of Eis-
berry who for a number of years ex-
erted wide political influenee in his
Congressional distriet, and Albert
W. (Pete) Palmer who married Rosie
Dempsey. William Palmer was the
grandfather of William Jesse Pal-
mer, long an employee of the Stiate
government st Jefferson City,

EARLY CONSTRUCTION
The first building in Elsberry was

i residenee moved from Nelson and?
rebuilt on the northwest corner of}

Bixth and Griffin Streets. A day or

two later the railroad company erect._‘

ed a warehouse for todls and sup-

plies south of the depot., The next
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puilding was the Webb Hotel, built
- on the bank of Lost Creek just north
“of the present location of the Bank
- of Lincoln County, on the edge of
Cthe incipient bluff to keep oul of
flpod waters. The Hotel was built
early for the acecomodation of the
workmen engaged in the survey and
- constrretion of the road.

The first train reuched Elsherry
;August 14, 1879. I, (. Davidson,
‘the first telezrapher and station
. apent who was residing at the time
“jn Creston, Iowa, and who spent
the later years of his life as editor
of a weekly paper at Carthage,
Tllinpis, relates that he received a
“telegram August 9, 1879, directing
‘him to come to Keckuk, There he
found a brand new ftrain wailing
to make itz first trip south on the
new railroad which had just been
completed from Keokult to 8% Per
ers, where it conneated with the
 Wabash. He was instructed to est-
“ablish a station at a place they
‘were expecting 40 name Elsherry
hat when he gobt off the frain there
‘about midnight and the train moved
“on he found no depot or other build-
~ing and no one in sight. After a
;while a man came down the track
Cearrying & eandle lantern, a glass
‘globe with a tallow candle inside,
jand took him to his home aboul a
shuarter of a mile away. The good
!Bamaritan proved to bke A. A, Bro-
ither, who had a carpenier shop in
] Nelson and was the earliest carpen-
wter in Elsherry. Mrs. Brother was a
{Zine motherly, woman, deaughler of
Jozeph W. Bitton (1806) and Mary
iBuchanan Sitéon (1213) and Davidson
talways remembered her with affec-
ition. She was a member of a large
family of sisters: Elizabeth Ann
(1832-1916) who marrvied Sammuel
Perry Cannon (1827-1800}, Frances
{Fannie} Emaline (1834.1917) who

marrvied Willlam Trail (1830-1887),
Ida who married Ben Shipp, Gather-
ine who married Columbus (Lum)
Long, Harrieft F. (1868) who mar-
ried Henry II. Ashbangh, {1841)
Kusebia who remained unmarried,
dulia Ellen who married Thomag J.
Diggs, (1846), Mary Melissa (1855-
1938) who married Thomas V. Far-
mer (1852-1939), and JFane (18386-
1922) who married A. A. Brother
(1829-1907), They were granddaugh-
ters of Captain William Sitton (1778-
1865) who commanded a company
in the War of 1812, At the Battle of
New Orleans his company was in
the front line and when the cap-
tain of the company next to him
deserted, he took charge and com-
manded both companies in the his-
toric battle in which Andrew Jack-
son crushed the English army under
Packenham.

The new agent boarded with the
Brother family uniil the Webb Hotel
was opened nearer his work, The
following morning after his arrival
he feund a telegraph  instrument
which had been placed on a large
board beside the railroad t{rack, and
the next train which came through
breught lumber and men who built a
lean-to shack where bhe track inter-
sected the Browns Mill Road, A week
or two later, in September, 1879, a
depot was erected on the present
site, which was remodeled in 1923
and is mow serving as the freight
room of the present brick station.
Davidsen was sueceeded in 1830 hy
Manford Burley who served until
he was appointed posimaster in 1888.
He was followed by J. C. Edwards
and then by C. L. Bushman who
perved from 1898 to 1936, the long-
est period served by any incumbent
in the history of the station. W. E.
Long assumed charge in 1936 and on

this rvetirement in 1954 wag succeed-
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' ; ed by Roy N. Nichols, the present

agent. These six men were without
exception men of special ability and,
serving in  quasi-official eapacity,
contributed materially to the pre-
gress and prosperity of the com-
wunity. They were especially help-
ful in maintaining orderly business
procedures and in incoleating the
highest ideals of good citizenship.

Business came slowly. Peeple gath-
ered In erowds to see the railread
and meet the trains. But they still
ehipped their grain and livestock by
hoat and patronized the bar and
“Palace Dining Saloen” on the St
Louis packets. One couragecus na-
tive, fortified with a stiff bracer
from the drug rcicre, snnounced to
all the world that he was, “a goin
to ride the danged thing” and a
crowd collected to see him off. The
train came and went without the
pascenger. Why didn't you gat on
demanded hiz friends, “Well, he
said, “I was ready but they didn't
put ount no gang plank” On another
occasion ithe engineer, leaning out
the window of his e¢ab waved his arm
at the gaping crowd and shouted
“Look ont down there. T gm going
to turn  around” ¢ precipitating =
frenzied stampeds ss the frightened
erowd raced for safeby.

But it wasg difficult 4o divert {raf-
fic from the river. Falmovh was two
miles east of Elsherry, the largest
river port between C(larksville and
8t. Charles, with stores, shons, sa-
loons, hotel and extensive stock pens,
Through it flowed the commwmerce of
New Hope, the losal metropolis, and
Auvburn, one of the cemters of cul-
ture in the ccunty, and a dozen
smaller villages. The 4rin to S5t
Louizs by boat wensumad the larger
part of two days whereas daily {rains
from Elskerry reazched St. Louig in
threa or four hours, Bub custom wss
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strong and shinpers and passengersy

river on the beat with its freedom,
its friendly bar amd itz tradition-
ally hospitable dining room. Freight
and passenger rates were standard-

ized and the only competitive induce. without ¥ ; )
ipowerful lobby at Washington and in

rival steamboat lines was the cui.ia few months the

ments which could be cffered by the

enjoved the leisurely trin down the iwho :
ror . Lnable friends to pet shipments out
.Sof the freight house or buy a ticket
o St Louis.
: However,

lent mumerous small sums to

the railroads were not
ecoursge. They maintained a

United States

sine. Consequently the hill of fare/Board of engineers suddenly foundf
from which the patron might chcoselit necessary, I t¢he maintenance o
sny or all of half a dozen kindgithe river channel and the promotion

b
of meat, every vegetable the marketgt)f

alforded, and conserves, pasiries and

desserts without end, were atirac-i#h

interstate commerce, to build
dikes and vevetments which in a
ort time so filled the harbor that

%ions whieh left the railroad at a‘i]}‘almouth, the principal harbor be-

hopeless disadvantage.

Unfortunstely the boats also c'i’-;i

fered other social diversions ang town 21 -
travel by railread or walk.

ona among meny instances is reca
led in which Wright Mayes, a loecal
farmer, shipped hiz wheat at a time

when it was selling at war prices and 9% Elsb

received o Ybtle over $3,000 for it berry (1792-1871),

1

As thera were no local banks

itween Clarksville and Sf. Charles
‘for half a century, became a ghost

d the customer wag free to

ELSBERRY FAMILY
Robert Thomas Elsberry, founder
erry, son of Willlam N. Els-
of Maryland, vet-

he BTAIL of the War of 1812; and Lydia

earried the money with him on hig

b Falmouth vwitheut a penny.

}

accounts

zondrary, demanded paymeut for pas
aaga when the ticket weas bought and
refused to relesse freight unli! trans.
portation eharges were paid. Asg
sparie wag searves, few patrons had
«ash with which to defray ecwmrren
oatigabions and a2 path was worn up
the vight-of-way of the raflroad t
e home of Mordecal W. Wilkin

irip back home, In the cource of the\gbrother of Benjamin F.

evening he engaged in a friendly
game of poker and got off the boak

Another deterrent to railvoad tre.f-i(‘:z_ : lsberre G
“iec was the credit system n1.aint&ined"§mer’ Nancy Ann Elsberry Cannon
by all packet companies under whichi} . .
were charged and settled, ther of Lucinda Galloway and Diane

. i
once a yesr. The railvoad, on tha‘f

som, {1848-1283) one of
“monied” men of the times who Hve
on the bluff where the Brown’s Mill
Read crossed the ralircad, now fhe
of Ralph Galloway, aal

residence

iP. Owen (1800-1882), of Kentucky;

Elsberry,

-postmaster at New THope from July
4, 1862 to October 10, 1863, George
'W. Elsberry (1820-1877), great great

grandfather of John Elsberry Pal-
(1825-1877), great great grandmo-

Galloway, and William Lewis Candus

Elsherry  (1822-1805), the great
‘grandfather  of Mary Willena
Mayes; was born in  Bourbon

County, Kentucky, June 14, 1813.
He came with his father's fam-
ity to Missouri in 1837 and in
1839 was married to Julia Ann Buch-
anan (March 16, 1821-September 30,
1876) at her father’s home near

children;

Thomas 8. Elsberry who married
Franees B. Berkley and moved to
North Dakota in 1888, None of his
descendants remain in Missourd.

the fe‘j:! Paynesville. To them were horn fen

William Awzicl Enapp Elsberry,
born in 1840, was named for W. A.
Knapp, postmaster at New Hope
from May 23, 1844 to September
1866. He was married to Rachel Tem-
perance Sitton in 1860, He was in
business with his brother Thomas
throughout their lives and moved
with him to North Dakota in 1888
where he died in 1896, He was the
father of Montrose P. Elsberry born,
1868, Mayor of Elsberry, and Benj. D.
Elsberry, born 1864, and grandfather
of Mrs. Wm. Curtis Taylor.

Flisha F. Elsberry who died in
1864 in camp during the Civil War.

George G. Elsberry (1844-1864),
volunteered wth his brother and
died in camp.

Naney Elizabeth Hester Elsherry
(1849-1923), married September 6,
1866 to James Causyra Wilkinson
(1846-1888), a grandson of James
Wilkinson (1788-1865), who was a
soldier of the War of 1812. She was
the great great grandmother of Da-
vid Thomas Bowers. ’

Lydia Elsberry, married Samuel
Overton Robinson who was born in
Kentucky. ITer son, Robert (Bob)
TRobinson was BEditor and Publisher
of the Elsberry Advance. She was
grandmother of Leighton Ferry and
Barbars, Robinson.

Mary Elsberry, married James
Robinson, who was mnot related to
Samuel Overton Robinson, Her grand
daughter, Edna Mae Robinson mar-
ried Prof. Glen Kilmer, a member
of the faeulty of the Elsberry High
School,

Virginia Tlsberry, first married
Samuel Jamison and then James
Fvans, She was the great grand-
mother of John Wm. Dowell and Ella
Lee Daniel. James Evang grew the
bushel of wheat which in 1904 won
the highest award at the Chiecago
World’s Fair ag the finest wheat in
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the world.

Sarah Lou Elsherry, known af-
fectionately in the family as “Dite”
married Charles W. Gleeson. Her
son, Frank Qleeson, was a member
o thas Railrcad Brotherhoods and one
of ths outstandirg labor leaders of
Famihzl.

COrion Elsberry (1841-1862),
died in ch’ldhood.

The mother, Julia Ann Buchaman
Rlsperry died in 1878 and in May of
1882 the Founder was marrvied to
Mrs, Columbus (Lum) Frazier, nee
Lzuta Arceliz Sydnor, who had a mil-
linery shop in the original building
on the northeast corner of Fouth st.
and PBroadway whare the Foley
Building now stands, and who with
her danghier, Claudine Frazier, was
a charter member of the Elskerry
Christian Church.

Trom their marviage, the couple
were affectionately known in the
communtity as “Uncle Bob and Aunt
Cell.” They began housekeeping in
the house now owned by J. B. Ellis at
¥ifth and DuBois streets. Later she
degigred a new home which they
built on the creft of the hill on
the west side of &ifth street, now
known gz the Katie Jane Home.

On Mareh 21, 1874 Robert T. Els-
berry and Julia A. Elsberry, his
wife, had deeded 250 acres of the
farm, which he had bonght from
the heirs of Nelson Watts in 1868,
to his son Thomias S. Elsberry. But
in the summer of 1879 when the
fairy with the magle wand tonched
himm and opportunity beckoned, he
beught back, on July 9, 1879, 102
acres of the tragt, reaching from
the south line of Survey 1706 (Lost
Creek) on the south, to the Browns
Mill Road on the north, and from the
railroad to be built on the east to the
Biuff road on the west.

who

o

who have moved from Louis-
snd were living at Nel-
on the year the building boem
{inred; and Michael Cooney, who

This is the original town of Elsf ?: ’
berry as surveyed by A. E. FreerFl
in August of 1879, and recorded §

the Recorder’s Office at Troy, & clates that his first work on
page 158 of Book 13. ;-eaching- Elsherry in 1880 was
On the same day, July 9, 1879, i trees in  the wvalley

conformity with his agreement withé':lfelzg hge cut sycamores 50 large that
Roberts, Melntosh and Carroll, hea man could ride his horse up on
deeded them a one half interest itjpe stump of the tree and turn
the .102 acres—and the great pro yound without the horse stepping
motion was under way. j:;ff the stump, One of these syca-
From the time of hiz second mar;imi-es standing a short distance out
!}‘ia.tg‘e all the first deeds in the ord, ghe field of the R. E. Black
1g1nal town of Filsberry bear thearm, just across the railroad track
signatures: B. T. Elsberry and Laurdpom the elevator, which had been
A, Elsberry, his wife; John Ofollowed out by rot but was still
Roberts and Malvina M. Roberts, higppowing on the outside left a space
wife; William M. McIntosh and Marfijeide the tree so commodious that
tha A, McIntosh, his wife; Henry Siyhen the sheriff happened fo be in
Carroll and Luey C. Carroll, hig wifefiha vicinity, many illicit poker games
A few of these deeds still remaifyere transferred there from the
as ireasured heirlooms. 'kneighbgring saloon which alse stood
There was an immediate and grow,\on that side of the drack. And for
ing demand for town lots. Titleymany years affer the saloon was
changed hands and were =old and re.gcl()sed by local option the nhails driven
gold, each time at inereasing pricesfon the inside of the tree, from which
It way the first railroad in thelanterns were hung, were to be
county and expectations ran highfseen in this popular resort so con-
The first edition of the Elsberry Adfveniently screened by the growing
vance recounts that one ecarpenteficorn which grew luxuriantly on this
alone, R. E. Black, (1846-1927)frich soil washed down by Lost Creek
grandson of John Black who wadfrom the surrounding hills. Amother
born in Jedburg, Scatland, whdibrominent contractor and builder was
moved from New Hope in the 3pringA1vin Harris (1827-1912) and hig son
of 1880, erected 25 hounses in #theyCharles (Buck) Harris, who made a
new town in the following gixisbecialty of building mills and built
months, Bob Black is almost ag clogedthe Brown Mill near Louisville from
ly identified with the town and itwhich the Browns Mill Road took
development as the Founder. Helits name. He and his family left
gave the Public Park to the CityiBlsberry in the earliest of the many
(deed by Robert E. Black and Sudiej™igrations beginning in 1878 which
J. Black, Robert T. Elsherry andfdrew population from the vieinity
Laura A. Elsberry, dated Januarygirom time to time, and moved with
others to “New Brasky” (Nebras-

12, 1887) and he and hiz son, R, Al
Black (1878-1948), were benefactorsji?): Other such migrations included
those to Montsna (vicinity of Bill-

vf the community throughout long]
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1888, to Texas in the 1890s, to Ok-
lahoma in 1893 and te Manitoba,
Canada in 1910. Some of these treks
involved many people, vast quanti-
ties of chatels and extensive cap-
ital, For example the Elsherry bro-
therg, Tom and Bill, were among the
wealthiest men of the community and
chartered an entire train to take
families, retainers, stock, machinery
and household goods, But all of
fhem, especially the migrations to
the Dakotas and Canada, ended dis-
astrously in the pratically total loss
of nll assets. Omly those who still
later moved to California attained
expected prosperity.

The sudden and sustained growth
of Elsherry seems to have heen due
to itz location, sufficiently distant
from Clarksville on the north and
St. Charles on the south, to avoid
gtifling competition in those days
of slow and difficult transporta-
tion in trade tervitories, and the
fact that it was on the arterial read
from Falmouth to New Hope, Auburn
and Olney, and other important com-
mercial centers. Another factor was
the low price of the excellent lum-
ber whieh floodad the river markets
ahout this time. Ruthless exploiters
had discovered the miliions of square
miles of virgin forests in the north
and were filling ithe Mississippi with
rafts of logs, the finest lumber ever
grown, The clear white Minnescta
pine, with hardly a knot, easily
worked and almost indestructible,
provided at negligible cost lumber
for buildings which stand today
with joisis and rafters as good as
the day they were buill. Any man
who could afford to buy a lot could
afford to build a house and in a re-
marvkably shert time Elsherry was
housed and sidewalked with white

and useful lives. Other contractors] ings) in 1888, to North Dakota in

and builders were A, A. Brother andi‘

: 18 * |

L

pine which cannot be bought feday
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at any price. The ties, the Ilong
planks ten inches wide and two

inches thiek with a hole at each

end through which stakes were driv-
en info the logs to hold the rafts
together, were a byproduet which
scld for almost any offer. They
ware ideal for sidewalks and in Pike
County a continuouns road from Lou-
isiana to DBowling Green was built
by laying them ecross-wise on sgtring-
ers. Toll was charged and the road
was highly profitable urtil the planks
Legan to warp and toss one end up
¢ break the legs of fast driven
horses or suddenly engage the wheels
of passing vehicles. Finally the
cost of patrelmen to locate and nail
down the warped ends exceeded the
revenue derived from the tolls and
the road was dismantled znd con-
sumed as fuel by neighboring far-
mers.

Winficld and Foley, like Blsberry
vere exempt from withering com-
petition and were on sitrategic reads
from the River, Winfield between
Cape au Gris aind Argentville, Foley
between the WMississippi and Burr
Cak. Foley was{named for Addison
Foley, pgreat gréat grandfather of
Donna, and Phil Chamberiain, one of
the most remarkable men of his tume,
who owned a large fraet of land
nearby, ircluding the site of the
town, .

He was a merchant at New Tope
and when the war came on, had the
foresight to see that the North weuld
eventually bleckade the Souwth and
stop the exportation of cofton and
cotion products. He mobilized all
financial resoureés and hurriedly teok
passage on & tiver packet to St
Louis and bought heavily., He filled
his  shelves with ecalico, sheeling,
cotton  flannel, bleach, cotton bat-
ting, cotton wrap, then much in
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demand, and every other commodi
in which cotton was a factor. J
filled the attic of the store and f
basement. He filled the spare root;
in his dwelling and in those
neighbors.

No other merchant foresaw
Soon supplies at Clarksville, Loy
jana, Troy and St. Charles were g
haused. Every day the price on 1
8t. Louis market went up unf

tail at Be a yard was $1 a yu
Clay Sanders, a great uncle

Harry Robert Sanders, was a sald]
man in the Foley gstore at the tiy
and relates that every morning why
the price current, a small sheet §
paper reporting prices on the

Lonis market, came they we
throogh and marked up the good]
Much of it was yard goods and w)
wrapped around a wooden core
the end of which it was eustoma
to write the price per yard with
lead pencil. Scon the board had i
vow of figures clear up one side af

down the other where the old pri]

i

had been crossed out and the ne
price written in. Customers ean)
Irom two or three counties away ai
weore glad to pay the war price fi
Indispensible necessities. Money pou:
ed in in such quantities that in th]
absence of hanks ity  dispositid]
became a serious problem. But is wi
all in greenbacks and on July 1
1864 greenbacks, which had bed
steadily dropping, fell 4o 8%¢ pd
doilar in gold. Rawleigh Mayes, prd
viously mentioned gs the great grand
father of Mayor Whiteside, had thre]
thousand dollars in geld which
had accumulated from the sale o
wheat which had been selling £
$3 per bushel, and other farm LY
duets at war prices. Addison urge

Rawleigh to sell him the gold Lol

fof DuBois streat and Third
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' greenbacks. Finally after some ne-

gotiations, Rawleigh, who also had
gome Fforesight and who, though an
extensive slave holder foresaw the
ijnevitable exhaustion of the South,

§ «pld the three thousand dollars in

gold for 88,000 in greenback. And
when specie paymenit was later re-
sumed by the United States Govern-
ment saw his judgement vindicated.

Addison sealed the gold im fruit

. . 1jars and burled them in the dirt
ealico which he had bought to b floor of his stable where they re-
§ mained for many years, so long in
¥ fact, that when finally dug up, one

Y of them was overlooked and remain-

ed behind. In the course of time an

old colored hand when directed to
¥ clean out the siable and scattar the
4 manure on ‘the field at the north-
4 wast corner of the juncture of the
4 Anburn and Clarksville roads, late

in the evening, broke the jar withoud

{ noticing it and tossed it up with the

manure on the top of the lead.

! Thersafter it was years before the

plow eceased fo turn up a five or
ten or twenty doliar gold piece when
the field was plowed. It was said

| that it was never difficult to get

hands to plow that field.

The first new huilding erected in
Elsberry was the Webb Hotel, built
by Capt. J. P. Webb at the corner
street,

at that fime known as Nelson Strest,

1 just nowth of where the Bank of

Lincoln County now sgisnds. Ii was

3 built on the edge of the bluf? high

enough to escape filood waters .rom

k- Tost Creek which flowed up Third

Street in front of it. The Hotel
'was opened Seotewnhber 16, 1879 for
‘the accommodation of the engingers,
workmen and mschanics engaged in
the econstraction of the railroad.
‘Local wags originated = deggerel
verse which was shoutad in the din-

ing room on all oceasions with
graat good nature:

“Blsberry Town—Nelson Street,

Webb Hotel—and nothing to eat”

As o mafter of faet the sentiment
wag purely joeular. 'The service was
excellent and the hotel was popular
with its clients and cusfomers, and
prozpered umtil the ereetion of a
larger and more modern hotel nearer
the depet. It was later purchased by
Dr. 8. M. Bailey who remodeled it
‘and resided there until its destruct-
ion by fire. The location was sub-
sequently oecupied in part by the
Elsberry Fire Department.

About the same time, the railread
put up a temporary warehouse south
of “the depot between Main Strest
and the railroad. As need for stor-
aga of congtruction tools and mauter-
ials passed, Henry Carrcll brought
R. R. Bmither, a loeal groeer, down
from Paynesville and opened =
grocery in the front end of this
struecture.

The firat building for business
purposes was moved down from
Nelson, The firm of Elsberry and
Witkinson (R. T. Elsberry and Jumes
C. Wilkinson} had maintained a
general store there for several years
and JI. C. Wilkinson the postmaster
devoted a corner of the building to
the post office. Immediately on the
opening of the depot, R. T. Els-
berry, anxions to encourage the
construction of buildings on Broad-
way, moved the store and siock of
goods from Nelsen to the corner
of Broadway and Fourth Street and
wishing to devote his time and eap-
ital to other fown enterprises, scld
the store to thres young men, Tully
R. Geodman, s son-in-law of A. A.
Brother, who had been in the furni-
ture business in Nelson, J. R. Can-

non and Dr. W. A, Hemphill, who
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opened the store under the nawme of
Goodman, Camnen and Company. In
1880 the fwo partners gold their
interest to Randolph Cannon who
with varions partners remained in
business on that COTner, Now oc-
eupied by Cannon and Riffle, the
remainder of his life.

R. T. Elsberry immediately be-
gan the construction of a two story
frame building just aeross the street
on the corner now occupied by the
Foley Building, for many years the
only two story business house in
Elsberry, and rented the lower story
to Mrs. Arcelizs Frazier who moved
from New Hope to open a millinery
and dressmaking establishment. The
upper story served as a community
building and lodges met there, the
churches held oyster suppers there
and important political meetings
weare held there. For some time Lhese
two buildings remained tha only
struciures “on the WillL” The con-
struction of the town proper started
on Main Street and slowly spread
to the east end of Broadway and
for a time there was brisk competi-
tion between the merchants “on
bhe hill” and those “under the hill,”
with a distinet advantage in favor
of those under tlfe hill. Main Street
wag lined with business touses
down where they could “waftch the
‘trains.” Furtherest south was the
drug store of John Montgomery
Gibson (1855-1848) who married Ada
B. Hunter in 1878, great grandfather
ol James Albert Ricks, and who was
to play a preminent rvofe in the an-
yals of the town in"which he was one
of the first business men. John Gum
had a drug store
when the Elsben? boom began, For-
seeing the growth of the railroad
and the town, he erected a store on
Main Streel and moved his steck

im New Hope

there. Shortly affer, in Scptember
1880, he sold the store %o W, I,
Prior, son of a Christian ministey
of Paynesville. In the store he rented

gus X . . at "‘ .
guarters to J. F. Crane, a watch el newspaper reponted he at times

maker anrd jeweler from Iliinois.

Next door north on Main Street
was the firm of R. T. Wiggintoy
and Co. with B. C. Weleh and W. Aj
K. Rlsberrv as partners and witj
branch steres at Falmouth and t:he
Cross Roads,

Immediately north was the storg

of Smither and Shipp, Dick Smithe;_
and A. D, (Bud) Shipp, the grand"

father of Dr. Howard A. Rusk, pery Sfain street was the emporium of

haps the most noted surgeon an
rehabilitation specialist in Americy
today, a man of international reputa
ttion wnd the most distingnished livd
ing Missourian. His great aunt, Mrs
Nelle Eastin WMorris, is one of {,hseE
beloved residents of the city.

The store of Smither and bmpp

roll and Co. Carroll who, like the
Founder, sold out as soon as he -haq'
established the firm, sold to Shipg

who later served 'as postmaster, an
remained cne of the outstandin
husinessmen of the fown until hi
removal to Brookfield.

The next store,
corner of Main and Broadway, in
a new building was “Etter’s Q. P,
C. H. (One Price Cash House)
owned by M. E. Etter and Rober

kiter who moved the stock of dryl

goods and clothing frem Paynes
ville to Flsberry in January, 1880

lacated on thg'

It was succeedsd by Gibson and
Bastin, later by Kastin and Rosg
{Lum Eastin and Thes, M. Rose, o
Curryville) and, in 2 new locstion]

'Reid Dry Goods Co.
Across the street
Mayes,

Charles ‘
the great grandfather o
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John Randelph Howard, built a now
gwo story ‘hoiel which was op{,rated
by Samuel Richards, formier owner
of the Falmouth Hotel, where the
nfad 42 Fegular boarders.” Meals
were previded for tronsients at from
i5¢ o 25c¢ each. And north of the
hotel on Main street, Mrs. M. Hitt,
the great grandmother of Lienten-
st James H. Elliott, U. 8. A., one
of the earliest and most highly re-
gardéd residents of the town, main-
tained a popuiar delicatessen.
]"*ctexidmg west on Broadway from

Sour and Reuater, who moved from
New Hope in July of 1880; the law
office of James W. Powell; Wilkin-
gon and Hefflington, saddlery and
hamess; J amus teuisbervy, merchant

§ yailor (the first man to die in Els-

berry): the Guile Furnitore Storve,

was the suceessor of Smither, Car: ppevated by Geo. C. Elliots who also

had a stove and tinner’s business in

‘the game building; Miller’s Restaur
ent, where according to his adver-

tigement in the local peper, he alse
provided “card tables, pigeon hole
ttshles and other forms of entevtain-
ment and games of chance”

On the north side of Bloadway,
beginning with the Richards Hotel,
were Suddarth’s restauvant and
Felty’s blacksmith shop. About mid-
night one Saturday night when the
Waek—en_d business had been _brisk
and the day’s resceipts were still in
ithe tﬂls, ‘a clerk sleeping in the
sbore of Cannon.Bros. was awalten-

ad by the sound 0f an anger boring’

through the front door around the

| fock. The door opened gently and|w
d ac - the center
T d he_as n man -came down ]

by Rose and Trail and now by t § aisle with a dark lantern, the. clerk
‘:opened fire with a revolver.
{ man dashed back through the open

~door and could be heard runaing
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down the street. The next morning
the blacksmith appeared and said
the tools lying at the door had peen
&bolen from his shop, Soon after he
meved away and was hever heard
from again, On up the sbreet were
Tim Mulcare’s shoe shop, Wobb’s
Hotel, B. 8. and 1. N. Carnon, groc-
ers, T. L. Foley, jeweler, Goodman,
Cannon: and Co,, the Bibb- residence,
the W. T. Reed residence, E. D.
Brazier’s Wagon Shop and John D,
Carter, wheelwright. And at the
confluence of Broadway and the
Biaff Road -was the blacksmith shop
of Henry D. Leo {(born i862, married
Doreas Hogue in 1881, moved to
Nebraska in 1883).

These bu’ldings constituted a solid
biock on Main Street, and two biocks
of business homses on the south
side of Broadway from Main Street
ap to Third Street, The biock irom
Third Sireet to Fourth Streel on
the south side of Broadway was
occypied by three - structures, two
residences with & small barber shop
between. The large and imposing
residence of Sour and  Reuter- came
Tirst, and West of the barber
shop was the residence of 1. D.
Gatewcod, the barber who married a
sister of Mrs. Charles A. Mitchell,
and who operated the shop. Reuter
was the son-in-law of Sour. He serv-
ed as postmaster of Elsberry from
December 19, 18382 1o Sept. 25, 1885.
Sdur and Reuter had a general store
and -bought goods in Chicago, St.
Louis, New York, Kansag City and
8t. Joseph. They always discounted
then bills and enjoyad a high credit
rvating, In 1886 they ordered large
quantities of goods and started a
series of special sales. They offered
stuch bargains that -other merchanis
in both Elsberry and New Hepe
were practically out of the market.
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For example, ACA bed ticking, then
a staple commodity, selling at 17c
and 18 ¢ per yard was sold at 2¢ a
vard, and everything else in pro-
portion. Extra clerks were employed
and mew hitch »acks were erccted
to take care of the unprecedented
volume of trade which flowed in
from the surrounding trade terri-
tory. And then after a rictous Sat-
arday in which goods were sold at
almost any price offered, the firm
closed #s doors and announced it
was bankrupt. The crowd of credit
men which poured in on every train
from wholesals gtores of every city
within 500 miles and more, resenibled
a natiomsa! conventien and taxed to
the utmost the hotel and restaurant
facilities of the commumity. Many
had to be taken in by private house-
fholders. A brigade of lawyers and
detectives followed, But no assels
were in sight. It was the sensztion
of the year if mot of the Dbusiness
life of the town. And In a short
kime the unfortunate and impover-
ished family of Sour and Reuter
moved away leaving behind only
debts and sad recoliections.

The pioneer physicians of the
town were: Dr. R. T. Hawkins, Dr.
B. J. Lee, Dr. W. A. Hemphill, Dr.
8. H. Kerr, Dr. Samuel M. Bailey
and later, Dr. Leroy M. Lee, Dr.

iCharles 'E. Powell, Dr. A. M. Tay-
%or, Dr. C. A. McAfee, Dr. W. N,

Lowry, Dr. Forest V. Keeling, Dr.
Lynnie Lindsay, Dr. G. B. Lindsay,
Dr. Perry Balmer, D¢ Gilberf H.
ICallaway, Dr. R.-N. Hull, and Dr.
F. Q. Damron.

The earliest pesident dentise in
I sberry was Df. J. W. Taliferro,

followed in shecession by Dr.
James MeCleliand and Dr. Char-
Jes 8. Irvin. Later came Dr.
Clinton L. Alloway, Dr. J. N.

‘Damron, Dr. J. M. Beard, Dr. R

V. Diggs. Dr C. W. Powell an
br. . . Wilson.

After the removal of the firg
residence from Nelson to the corne
of Griffith and Sixth Street, and t-hg
opening of the Wehb Hotel, the firgf
dwelling erested in Elsberry wag
builé in the summer of 1879 byj,
James W. Geniry (1849), who may
ried Leticia Jane Cannon, sister of
B. 8. and 1. N. Caunon. The cottag,
stood on the corner of DuBois an
Fourth Streets divecily across F'omta
street from the present site of thy
Methodist Chureh and across DuBoi
street from the Catholic Chureh)
Jim (Gentry was for many years the
livery man in Elsberry, and later i
Troy, and was sheriff of Lincoly
Counly for eight years. In quiek
suceession  the residenee of Re\r;=
Webbh Bibb and sisters Nora ang
Jessie Bibb at the corner of Broad:
way and Fifth Streef, now occupied
by the LaCrosse Lumber Yard, th
residence of W. T. Reed, the editor
at the corner of Broadway and Sixt}
Street, now belonging to Miss Mat;
#tie Rose, the dwelling on Fifti
Street just north of the lumber yard
and the A. A, Brother house o
Fifth Street near Broadway mov

owned by Mrs. Nelle Eastin Morrig
were built in 1879 and 1880.

R. T. Eisherry, the Founder, took
an active interest in the Iocatie
and erection—and frequently in the
financing--of all these buildings an
all community enterprises. He was
prominent promoter znd stockholdet
in the elevator and flouring mill
in the school building, in “our bricl
church” and much later in the Els
berry-New Hope Gravel Road an
every intervening local enterprise

He was a man of profound conj
vietions and

a day when drinking was all bt

although he lived il}ii

myniversal, Wwhein a tin cup hung
by the whiskey barrel in most
gtores, and beloved pasfors of loecal
congregations were regaled on their
pastoral calls with a- glass of wine,
he was bitterly opposed to the sale
and use of Iiguor, and’ inserted in
all deeds he executed in the new
town a provision forbidding the sale
of intoxicating ligquors on the pre-
mises conveyed, under penalty -of
reversion of the title to the grantor
and his heirs. For many years this
Timitation was scrupulously observed
but eventually it wasz forgelten and
one of the Founder’s grandsons, Wes-
ley Amos Rchinson  (1B68-1942)
brought suit to enforce the eoven-
ant. The grounds for the deeision
of the court were in equity rather
than in law aud the suvit wag dis-
missed. But had the decizsion been
appzaled and the appellate court
talken the view handed.down en sim-
ilar covenants in other states, the
decision cof the lower court would
have been rsversed. However, it
would hav: made little difference in
the loeal situation as two saicons
were opened just across the fown
limits at either end -of Broadway,
shortly after the building of the de-
not, TIronically, the saloon across
the railread track at the east end
of Broadway was the firm of Watts
and FElshberry which included the
two oldest soms of the TFounder,
William A. K. Elsberry and Thomas
8. Llsberry. The saloon just across

-the Bluff Road at the west end

of Broadway, known as *“The Els-
berry Saloon” was owned and oper-

ated by the firm of R. T. Booth
and Company, consisting of John

Singleton, formerly of Fargnir Coun-
ty, Virginia, and R. T. (Bud) Booth.
As an early copy of the Elsbetiry
Advance advertises, they were re-

sorts where “one can wet his whis-
tle when it’s dry, heat himself when
he’s cold, or eool himself when he
is . warm.” The western pub was
known Iocally as “Glory” and the
eastern as “Halleluiah” and a largs
part of the masculine population of
the city cireulated with uninhibited
and unresirained ardor helween
Glory and Hallelujah.

But Elsherry—and in fael, Lin-
coln County—were temperately in-
clined and on Septembar 17, 1887,

in a courty-wide local option elec-

tion, Elsberry cast 61 votes for the
sale of liquor and 175 votes agrinst
the sale of ligquor. In the county the
vote was 951 votes for the sale of
liquor and 1,622 against the sale of
liguor—and the saloon left Elsberry
never to return.

But the most exeit'ng election in
the history of Hisberry was held in
November of 1884 resulting in the
election of Grover Cleveiand over
James (. Blaine, the fizst Demo-
cratie President elected since the
Civil War, It was a campaign of
unprecedented intensity. Women clos-
ed the doors and pulled down ihe
window shades and did not appear on
the streets. Practically every male
citizen of Blsberry was a member
of the Democratic Campaign and
Marching Club or {the James G.
Blaine Republican Clab. The Dhe-
mocrats erected a tall flag pele in
the mortheast corner of the Park
and flew a Cleveland and Hendricks
banner surmounted by the American
flag. Wach member of the Club was
provided with a cap, a toreh light
ponsisting of a long handle on the
end of which was a swinging ean
of coal oil and & heavy wick when
ignited gave ovt a black and odor-
ous cloud of smoke and a minimum
of illumination. Each marcher also
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had an oileloth cape to proteet the
wearer from sparks and drippings
from his torch, The slandercus na-
ture of the campaign was reflected
in the songs of the two parties. The
Democratic clubs marched through
the streets and up Broadway chant-
ing:

Blaine, Blaine, James G. Blaine

Continertal liar from the State of

Maine

BURN THAT LETTER.
to which the relatively few Dbut eq-
ually vociferous Republieans on the
sidewalks and roofs of buildings
shouted derisively:

Maw, Maw,

Where’s my paw?

Geing to the White House,

Haw, Haw, Haw.

Elsherry voters cast 215 votes for
Cleveland and 125 for Blaine but it
was several days before the mational
result of the election was lknown.
When it became evident that Cleve.
land had really been elected, Els-
berry Demoerats were delivions with
joy. There were no buildings north
of Hill street. A wheat field ex-
tended from the crown of the hil
to Page Branch, and on, either side
of the Bluff Road, from where the
Preshyterian Clireh now stands, a
split rail fenece ran zigzag north to
the Branch and beyond. Aceordingly
the brow of the hill just over the
rail fence was selected for the hon-
fire and Camplell McDonald, the
blacksmith, wag placed in charge of
the anvils, Fo¥ two days patriotic
farmers hauled in}oads of cordwood.
Quantities of soft coal were approp-
riated from the railroad sidings. A
barrel of tar and a barrel of pitch
were supplied ag the expense of the
Club, and nearby, aboui where the
home of Mrs. ¥red Cox now stands,
the anvils were placed. Gunpowder
was poured or one znvil and the

other anvil was placed on top g
the powder. Then Cam - swung a 1
foot rod of wrought iron from tj
fire where one end had been heats

a cherry red around to the guunpowd

der and a gratifying explosior I}
the voar of a battery of guns reve
berated over tha surrounding country
Politics was a serious matter #
those days and so hilarious was thy
celebration that late the next morgl
ing many of the revellers were
sleeping on the sidewalks of
city in the sharp November
“but ’twas a glorious vietory.”
INCORPORATION 1

With the rapid growth of hf
village, and the heavy mpatrvonage ¢
the two adjacent saloons, the med
essity of an organized municips
government became imperative. 1
The town hal been surveyed an
plotted by 7. E. IFreer, a civil engj
ineer, employed by the Clarkavill
entrepreneurs in  August of 187
This plat was officially acknowlesip
by R. T. Elsberry, John O. Robert:
William M. MecIntosh and Henry §
Carroll and was filed for rocon
May 21, 1881. Main Street ran pay
allel with the railroad, Broadway

ran west from the depot, the nortlj

and south streets were numbere
from second to sixth and the Bt
Road later became seventh stree
The east and west streels wer)
given local names as New Hope stre]
Auburn Street, Lineoln street, Hill
street, with the exception of twal
one of which was named DuBoij
street in memory of a eivil engince
by that name who was killed when §
locomotive was derailed by a coy]
near the present Columbia -Quary)]
and Griffin street, named for
popular foreman on the road.

A ypetition szigned by 54 ecitizen]
was presented to the County Courj

at its August session, praying fo

Trostees

“in that or
‘make an extended trip, J. R. Cannon

jneorporation of the fown as fol-
lows:

“Reginning at 2 stone on the north
bank of Lest Creek where a con-
ginuetion of the Bluff Road south
would intersect said Creek; thence
morth with said Bluff Road to the
northern. line of Lineon  Strees,
as shewn by the recovded plat of

i gaid town; thence east on Lincoln

Street to Sixth Street; thence north
on Sixth Street fo the nerth lire of

{ Hill Street . thence east on che ncrth
iline of Hill Street to the S8t. Lcuis,
1 Keckul and Northwestern Railroad;

thenee southwest with said Ral'way

" 4o Lost Creek; thence wast along the

north bank of Lost Cresk to the
place of beginning.”
The petition was granted Novem-

‘ber 17, 1883 and the fown was in-

corperated as “Irhabitants of the
Village of Elsherry.” The first Board
of Trustees appointed by the Court
consisting of C. A, Mayes, J. W.
Powell, J. M. Gibson, J. R. Cannon
and G. C. Elliott, organized by
clecting C. A. Mayes as Chairman
and J. R. Cannon as Clerk of the-
Board.

The first municipal code of the
town was adepted by the Board of
December 13, 1883 and
gigned by C. A. Mayes, Chairman,
and J. R. Cannon, Clerk,

According to John M. Gibson, who
was 8 member of the first Board of
Trostees, C. A. Mayes was the First
Mayor of Hlsberry. When he resigned
a subsequent term to

was elected to succeed him and be-
came the second Mayor of Elsberry

i and Judge Gibson, himself was the
§ third Mayor of Elsherry. The design-
ntion at the time was “Chairman of
the Board” and the term Mayor did
} mot come in until organization of

the town as a City of the Fourth
Class. The rester of Mayors includes:

Charles. A. Mayes

J. R. Cannon

J. M. Gibson

Capt. Thomag R. Reid

A. A. Brother

H, B. Suddarth

W. L. Martin

M. P, Elsberry

Jobn W. Lueckett

Jesse B. Ellis

Wallace 8. Reid

Wm. W, Watts

J. R. Palmer

Elmer E. Brother

Tom: C. Smith

Dr. Forrest V. Keeling

Gordon Crank

A. L. Gladney

Salem A. Reid

Waldo 0. Fischer

Malcoln Heid

Dr, Edwin R. Whiteside

Charles Addizon. Mayes (1837-
1918), grandfather of Thomas Elmo
Foley and Mws. T. C. Howaxd, the
first Mayor of Elsberry, married
Mary Jane Duncan Sanders, daugh-
ter of James William Sanders and
Edna Foley, great grand parents of
Robert Francis Sanders, of Moberly,
He was one of the wealthier men of
the community and financed many of
the earlier enterprises of Elsherry.
He was a man of wide influence
and largely controlled the affaivs of
the growing town. :

In 1898 the Board of Trustees ord-
ered a census of the town which
showed a population of 815 people.
Thereupon the town was organized
as a city of the 4th class ard on
June 7, 1898 adopted ordinances con-
forming to the statutory require-
ments of that eclass.

The original town as platted and
incorporated included only the area




HISTORY OF ELSBERRY

betweenr DuBols and Griffin streets
from the railroad fo the Bluff Road.
Additions have been inecrporated as
follows:

Plat of Elsberry, November 6, 1379

Robert T. Elsberry Addition, May
25, 1832,

R. T. Elsberry Addition No. 1,
May 25, 1882.

R. T. Elsberry Addition No. 2,
May 25, 1882

R. T. Eilsberry Southeast Addi-
tion, July 16, 1891.

Robert E. Black Northwest Ad-
dition, November 14, 1891,

R. E. Black Northeast Addition,
Novambher 14, 1891.

John M. Gibson Addition, June 20,
1882,

A, Brown Addition, Administrator
of R. T. Elsberry, July 25, 1892,

B. C. Weleh Addition, August 19,
1892.

C. A, Mayes Addition, January 10,
1893.

Amended Plat of R. T. Elsberry
Southeast Addition, January 16, 1803

Robert E. Black Second Nsortheast
Addition, January 28, 1914.

Cannon Heights Addltmn,
ember 3, 1915.

J. H. Ligon Addltlon, Jannary 5,
1939,

Berger Tract Addition, April 20,
1548.

Charley  Brooksher
June 1, 1948,

Cannton Addition Subdivision, Feb-
ruary 21, 1949,

Amended Plat of Subdivision of
B, C. Weleh Tract, December 21, 1950

Osecar V. Wagner Subdivision of
B. C. Welch Addiiion, October 20,
1551, .

Brooksher Subdivision of M. A.
Cox Traet, March 28, 19b2.

Charley Brocoksher Subdivision of
B. C. Weleh Lot 2, April 17, 1954,

Nov-

Subdivision,

I

The Canncn Heights Addition eon-!
sigted of 80 aecres off the eastern end:
of a tract of land comprising the;
vorthern yortion of Swrvey 706 ex-i

tending from: the Browns Mill Road'

to the northern line of the Survey,
formerly belenging to Samuel Can-
non (1738-1857), gon of James Can-
{1762-18423, a Revolutionary
soldier, and great great great great
grandfather of Clin and Andy Cane
non. At the time of Samuels death
all his twelve children were married
with the exceplion of Lydia who was

pitszal

so frail that it was not believed sha.

could live mere than a few months,
Accordingly, in writing his will he
left this 80 acres to Lydia her life
time, to go to the zest of his child-
ren at her death. Conitrary o ex-
pectations and predictions Lydia sur-
vived all her brothers and sisters and
in 1869 married Frederick W. Page,
a Civil War veteran born in Ver-
mont in 1831. And thereupon the
River St. Antonis of Nepoleon’s eng-
ineers, kriown to the early settlers as
the Cannon Branch, became Page
Branch and has so remained to this
day.

It was a very fortunate marriage
for both. And irue to sftory book
sequence they lived happily ever
after. Lydia during her entire life
retained the garb gniversally worn by
the pioneer women of the earliest
period of settlement with all under-
garments hanging from the shoulder.
which may account for the fact that
not withstanding her frailtics she
lived to a ripe old age.

When ths dear old lady died in
1911 there were 86 heirs living in
14 states of the Union, some of
whom were never located, and whose
interest was paid into the State

Treasury under the statute govern-
ing disposition of such estates. By.
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order of the Cirenit Court the traect
was sold at aunction by the sherriff
o the highest bidder.

Up to this tme the city had been
contained in a2 siraight-jacket of
parvow limits. It could not extend
east across the railroad or south
across Lost Creek, As long as Lydia
tived nene of the entailed Pege land
eould be sold on the north. The conly
outlet was fo the west. Immediately
following the settlement of the es-
tate there was an insistent demand
for sites in the new tract. To dis-
pose of the tract most expeditiously
and most equitably the services of
an expert auctioneer were secured.
The land was surveyed and platted.
Two lots were set aside for a draw-
ing each day. All the space in the
lecal newspaper not under annusl
contract was engaged and for the
first and last t'me nothing appear-
ed on the fromt page of the Els-
berry Democrat except advertising—
the announcement of the sale. The
entire second floor of the local hotel
was engaged gnd office furniture in-
stalled. An passenger coach
wag hooked on to the morning train
from St. Louis to accomodate per-
sonnel and paraphernalias and the
shoek troupe detrained at Elsherry
with the bangd playing lively airs and
the sales force glad-handing every-
bedy on the station platform,

extira

The next morning, November B,
1916, promptly at ten o’clock the
procession siarted at the depot on
its way up Broadway led by the
brass band of eight or ten pieces
making more noise than any band
ever made Dbefore in the eutire
county. In martial order the proces-
sion sweut up the street with two
puctioneers six feet tall in Prince
Albert ccats and high silk hats
gesticulating

and ballyheoing as

CORY OF ELSBERRY

they came. At Tifth Street they
twrned  wnorth followed by crowds
in buggies, wagons, on horseback and
en foot completely ohstructing all
traffic. The sales foree carried a
svheat sack of mixed nickles, dimes
and quarters. At the first stake the
wagon drove to the center of the
lot. The band gave a staccato rendi-
tion of Dixie. Handfulls of <coins
were 'broadeast through the crowd in
every direction. The music was
drowned out by the two auctioneers
at opposite ends of the wagon chant-
ing and falking bids simultanecusly
and —“Sold” A representative of
the legal staff of the organization
immediately located the suceessful
pidder. With tears in his voice he
deplored the low priee st which the
lot had =o0ld, congratulated the buyer
on his great barzazin—and took his
gignature with wilnesses, In  the
meantime, without stopping to take
breath, the band started up again.
The wagon moved over to the next
Iot, the air was filled with flying
change aund again the ausiiomesrs
went into action. “Sold.”

A1l meorring and ali afternoon for
two days the sale went on, the erowd
grewing in gize and excitement as
the sale progressed. until at the
end of the secend day every lot in
tha 80 acres had been sold, A large
delegation followed the troupe to
the train to bid them an affectionate
goodby. And the exhaustad band
with swollen lips and aching feet
waved a feeble farewell.

At the mext school election a
spirifed contest developed over the
location of the new high schocl
building. The school directors woted
to build it in Western Elsbherry bLut
in a vigorous campaign the holders
of deeds %o lots in the new addition,
awake Lo a new community of inter-
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est, ganped up on the West and
voted to place the new high school
on the north side of the Browns Mill
Road. Some forty years later West-
ern Elsberry had its turn and the
new grade school was built on the
Wigginton hill.

Elsberry’s first appreciable setback
came in 18387 when a fire destroyed
the major poriion of the business
section of the town. The nriginal
business district was on Main Street
and the first two bloeks of Broad-
way. The area was tightly packed
with pine buildings and there was no
fire service. The fire started at
night znd within two hours the
entire area on the south side of
Broadway [rom Main to Third S.rest
was reduced io ashes with Iittle op-
portunity for salvage., When morn-
ing dawned the entirs heart of
the town with vast quantities of
merchandise was gone.

The larger part of the area was
not rebuill for more than 50 years
and the business district of the town
shifted over night. Eight years ex-
perience with flood waters and the
distracting proximity of7 tha adda-
cent railroad, had demongirated the
disadvantages of the site, and the
survivors moved to higher ground.

The railroads had other umexpact-
ed disadvantages. Herds of proiess-
ional hoboes, with no other secupa-
tion in life, and unrestrained by mod-
ern police supervision at city ter-
miinals, “rode the rafls” in box “rars
and under passenger trains, and
swarmed out over the country at
every stop, begging at back doors
for handouts. They lived surpris-
ingly well on the bounty of the un-
sophisticated housewives along the
line, Trainmen sought %o dislodge
them hut invariably they got back

on like fleag dislodged temporarily
from the family dog. The fill on the
right-of-way at Elsberry just below
the mill where Lost Creek crossaqd
over from Main Street to the Biack
farm was rich alluvial seil and the
finest crop of Jimpson weeds tr be
seen from St. Louis to Keoluk grew
there in luxuriant wbundance. Early
one morning two Knights of ihe
Road who had been unceremoniously
thrown off the last frain took stock
of their financial sitnation and
found they had just one dime be-
tween them. But the fall frost had
opened the Jimpson burrs and when
the stems were tiited a handful of
lustrous black seed poured ont. The
two resourceful gentlemen stopped
at the grocery of J. T. Culberison
on  Broadway and purenased two
large Bermuda onions, which fort-
nitously had just come in, at five
cents each. From an accomodsting
Urnggist they secured wrapping pa-
per and then with the onisn as a
sample descended on the town. The
size and aroma of the sample on-
ion, along with the ingratialing
courliness of the vendors, was so
convineing that they made a sale
af practically, every door. Iate in
the afternoon with their pockets
bulging with small change they maj-
estically entered the waiting room
vf the depot and bought first class
passage to the city. But before they
boarded the Puilman they had grace

“onion seed,” and by the next day
fno ome in Elsherry could be found
who had been a customer.

The next blow fell on October 8,
1881 when the engineer of a freight
train backing in on the siding, lost
control, and freight ears were cat-

apulted into the elevator and piled
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np aganst the mill and warehonses,
The steve in the caboose szet fire fo
the wreckags destroying what had
nreen left of that part of town by the
conflagration of 1887. Twoe of the
cars -were loaded with beer ana the
heavy kegs cascaded out over tha
streets rvoiling in every direstion.
Again it was a night fire ond the
plaze and roar of the flasmes with the
long blasts of the whistle on the
locomotive brought men in fiom
miles around. Every kind of wvehicie
fram wheelbarrow to 0x cart was
pressed into service and a celsbra-
gion started that spread over the
couniryside and lasted for ten days
or twoe weeks. The adjacent field on
the R. X. Black farm was dense
with growing ecorn and afforded
jdeal seclusion fFor special parties
and tha next spring when planting
time came it was necessary to haul

eway wagon loads of empty kegs:

before the field could he cleaved for
cultivation. OF all of Tlsberry’s fires
this was probably the most memor-.
able.

Again in 1894 fire originating in
g restaurant burned two ULiocks of
substantial brick buildings »n Broad
way, In what the local newspaper
termed “the greatest fire in the
history of the city.” The destruction
included the Bank of Lincoln County
and various stores and shops, and
the bank vault heated wh'te hot
could not be opened for several days.
Most of the contents of the safe
were ulurseoghizable but the re-
cords and specie in the wault were
still intact when finally reached. Re-
cords of the Masonic and 1. 0. Q. F.
lodges, then in the Foley Building,
wora badly damaged and charters
had to be replaced.

In March of 1930 the Iarger part

of the block on the south side of
Broadway extending from “FThird
strect west was Dpurned. The fire
was marked by the abandon with
which velunteer fire fighters in the
atterapt to salvape stocks of mer-
chandise and protect threatened build-
mgs ip the neighborhood, destzoyed
mare than they saved. Doors, win-
dows and shelving were chopped out
of building outside the fire zone wilh
axes. China and glassware weze strip-
ped from the shelves and tossed out
of the doors to safety on the con-
crete sidewalks while cozl  scattles
and brass sgitoons were earried
tenderly out and deposited without
appreciable damape at a safe dis-
Gance from the fire.

The following summer, June 9, 1920
the west end of the same bleck, was
hurned west of Fourth street, in-
cluding the new 1. 0. 0. F. building
with records, insignae and regalia.

With the exception of a third fire,
in thizs same bicek, in which Ceeil
Cannon died in his theatre, Sep-
tember T, 1837, Bisherry suffered no
further fires of any conseguence
until the destruction of the ZITA
Elevater, Mareh 17, 1955, and seems
to have at last solved its fire prob-
lems by the establishment and main-
tenamce of an efficient municipal fire
depaitment which renders such cat-
asfrophey practically impossible and
has materially reduced insurance
rates in the business section of the
city.

A disagter of another character
atrnck in 1899 when a Yight epide-
puje of small pox broke out and a
temporary pest house wag erected in
the bottoms cast of the city. There
were no deaths but the people of
the "trade territory naturally gave
Elsberry a wide berth during the
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entire summer. The streets were de-
serted. Business pratically ceased
and merchants and professional men
suffered serious losses, the effects
vf which were discernable in disert-
ed patronage long after the denger
was past.

In this day of modern medicine
end vaecination it is difficult to ap-

preciate the stark ferror which sweph
a community when a case of small-
pox appeared. Death was slow and
terrible. Few recevered and those
were marked for life, The only safe-
guard was flight and entire towns
were left vacant. When the disease
anpeared in Falmouth shortly after
the Civil war no one remained to at-
dend the sick but one or two who
thad survived an atbtack and were
immune. Boats refused to land and
prass grew in the streets. It is re-
lated that victims in their delerium
would sometimes escape from their
rooms and would be tracked by the
bleody imprints of their hands on
ithe walls and their feet on the side-
walks,

A son of the Gabriel Thompson
family, Edward Thompson Tiving
on a farm now known =as the
Page Place on a branch of the
Brownsmill Road - and for whom
the Thompson Crosging a mile or two
rorth of Elsberry on Highway 79
was named - went down to St. Louis
avith some livestock shipped by boat.
He spent a day or two in the city
“seeing the sights.” Shortly after
Le weturned home he developed a
high fever and the doctor when called
pronounced it to be small pox
of the most virulent type. An old
colored man who had survived an
attack in his boyhood waited on the
family. Neighbors brought food and
medieine which they left on a stump

in the middle of an adjacent field,
Ome by one mother, father, brothers
and sisters died and were carried
out by the old servant and buried
without benefit of clergy. The only
survivor of the entire family was a
daughter, Cynthiz whe had married
W. D. Jamizon a short time before.

Through prompt vaccination the
€pidemic of 1839 was socon under
tontrol and there were no fatalities.
It was the last aprearance of the
dread disease in this section of the
State.

Robert Thomas Elsberry, the
Founder, was in many respects in
advanee of his times. He did not
drink. He did not smoke. He was
temperate and devout in langrage.
He was an aciive patron of educa-
tion. And he was a communicant of
the Primitive Baptist Chureh, known
in those days as the Hardshell Banp-
tst, and was affilinted with the
Bryant’s Cresk RBaptist chureh, at
that time adjacent to the pioneer
cemetery about three miles west of
New Hope on the State rtoad be-
tween Klsberry and Auburn Junet-
ion. His brother William [. Els.
berry and his sister-in-law Mary
Ellen Mayes Elsberry, who lived
Just across the road from the ejureh,
were also members of this coigre-
gation.

One of his first carves in the est-
ablishment of the new town was
provision for religious services. He
donated the lot and gave the biick
for a church and personally super-
intended the erection of the building.
After the foundation had been com-
pleted and they were ready to lay
the eorner stone, the foreman asked
if there would be any ceremonies
in comnection with the laying of the
stone. The Founder was not fam'liar
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with such ceremonies and asked what
was usually done on such oecasions.
The foreman explained that it wag
pustomary to put a metal box under
the stone with a roster of members
pid 2 newspaper of the date and
coins of the year. The mortar had
been spread and the stone was wait-
fng. He felt in his pocket and drew
put a silver half dollar and tossing
it down in the center of the mortar
gaid “Lay it on that” Wkien the
pld building had served its time and
the present building took itz place
the corner stone was laid with el-
aborate ritual and ceremeny and in
the copper box euclosed in the mew
corner stone was placed the PFonnd-
er’s gilver half dollay whirh wag
found beneath the old stone when the
old building was razed.

The inhabitants of the flown co-
operated in the of the
c¢hurch without regard to creed or

denomination. All faithy were re-
presented in the contributions to
the building fund, and services were
held in the building by ministers of
all religious persuasion, Among those
who preached in the mnew church

erection

were Rev. Hayes Bell, of Clarks-
ville, pastor of the Cumberland
Preshyterian Church three m iles

north of Elsherry, Rev. Charler A.
M:tehell, pastor of Ebenezer Baptist
Church, Rev. T. A. Abbott, pastor
of the New Hope Christisn Chureh,
and Rev, John Moorehead O’Brien,
then or later presiding elder of the
Hanaibal District of the Methodist
Episcopal Church Seuth, later prasid-
ing elder of the St. Joseph District
and still later presiding elder of the
Plattsburg Distriet, All thise min-
fsters originally held mestings in the
waiting room of the depot. Later
meetings were held in the warehouse

south of the Mill and stin later in
't.he hall above the millinery esiah-
lishment of Mrvs. Areelia  T'razier.

METHODIST

Rev. O'Brien had served under Lee
in the Civil War as captain of a
North Carolina eompany and szhort-
ly after the close of the war had
moved to Missouri. He was a man
of fine presence, tall and command-
ing, with a generous shock of red
hair and was a Pefer Cartwright
type of preacher, He organized the
first Methodist Church, the First
church of any persuasion mn Elsherry,
November 24, 1879 and as soon as
the new -building was completed de-
dicated it as g Methodist Chuzch.
GGreat discontent and criticism fol-
lowed. The Founder, who had con-
tributed more than anyone eis. to
the building of the edifice was es-
pecially critical, so much se, that
he never “darkened its doors agpain”
and refused to attend the marriage
of his siep-daughter Claudine Fraz-
ier, the first marriage sclemnizad in
the buiiding.

Ministers

who Rev.

O’Brien, in the order of their suc-
cesston, were: J. M. O’Brien, H. D.
Groves, J. M. Ramsey, John Holland,
A. V. Bailey, M. ¥. Pryor, J. M.
Major, T. P. Middleton, H. I Cobb,
4. L. Taylor, E. W. Reynolds, Clyde
W. Gow, W. D. Neale, B. A. Me-

sncceeded

Knight, J. O. Coppage, W. W. Rich- .

eson, W. N. Giddens, L. C. Maggart,
J. W. Tanguary, E .E. Bustwich,
W. H. Ellington, B. D. Sipple, G. E.
Poole, H. E. Corbin, J. E. Rudloff,
C. H. Sherman, C. E. Yoees, J. Clifton
Tee, Frank (. Tucker, Jr,, Marvin
Tortell, K. D. Watkins, Jr.,, 0. O.
Diven, T. G. Matkin.
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BAPTIST

The Elsherry Baptist Church was
organized with 13 members, Ociober
27, 1883 by Rev. W. A. Bibb. Pas-
tors whoe have served the church
have been: Charles A. Mitchell, J.
D. Hacker, W. H. Stone, Dr. Wiley
J. Patrick, Dr. E. B. Dillard, W. A.
Bibb, J. T. Neving, 8. L. Palmer,
Joshua Hicleman, Charles King, Abe
C. Jones, W. L., Hatcher, J. ‘I, Phil-
lips, X. B. Magruder, 0. C. Tooper,
L. D. Gregory, Ed D. Dawson, L. E.
Bauer, G. Elmo Purvis, C. D, O’Neill
eud D. R, Pickern.

CHRISTIAN

The Elsherry Christian Churen was
organized with 29 members March
27, 1887 by Rev. T. A. Abhott. Mrs,

Nelle Eastin Morrig is the only sur-
viving member of the 29, Paslors of

the Church have been: Thomas A,
Abbott, James A. Grimes, B A,
Martin, J. B. Dyer, J. B. Mayrield,

W. A, Bibbony, Dr. William
W. Rumsey, E. G Merrill
William A. Meloan, Bowling G.

Reavis, Guy V. Ferguson, James K.
Todd, Frank W. Leonard, Arihur A.
Hedges, Arthur 8. A‘r}derson‘," Fran-
€ls J. Yokley, J. Morgan FHarris,
Ralph V. Callaway, H, Lee Jacobs,
0. Leonard Angel, Benn Hill Clea-
ver, Oriz E. Walson, George W.

Swan, Jr.,, William Steagall McLean,
Rohert F. Bristol, Br. Enoch P.

Gabriel, Harold Lindsay Odor and
Oscar P. Campbell.
PRESBYTERIAN ~

The Assoeciate Reforried Preshy-
terian Church was organized Aunpust
21, 1911 with 12 memhers, the dangh-
ter of the Mt. Zion Chureh, the
oldest church of that faith west of
the Mississippi River. Pastors of
the Elsberry Church have been: R.
N. Hunter, J. H. Snell, B, L. Grier,

R. C. Kennedy, D. P. Presley, ». C. ¥
Halliday, L. P. Knox, F. B. Edwards, j§

C. E. Edwards, J. Calvin Smith, Nale §
H., Wernecke, H. HE
John Guthrie and J,. B,

Falls, Dr. H.

Watson,

McFerrin.
CATHOLIC

Under the pastorship of Reverend §

IPather George P. Kuhlman, the Sae-
red Heart Catholic Church was dedie-
ated June 16, 1810 by Archishop
John J. Glennon, later His Emicence
John Cardinal Glennon of St. Louls,

Among the priests who have scxved

the congregation are Father Joseph
Newman who offered the first Holy
Mass in the residence of Cy Want-
land at Sterling Landing in i505;
Father Patrick P. Quigley, rom
Millwood, Father George P. Kuhiman
from Louisiana, Father Duaniel J.
Gleeson, Father Thomas Ger~ghty,
Father Corneling J. Flavin, Father
Joseph H, Huels and the present
pastor, Father Aloysins F. Wilmes.
HOLINESS

The Fire Baptized Holiness Church
of Elsberry was organized by Rev.
William A. Femmer and Rev. Laur-
ence Schaper in August of 1930 and

‘cooperated in the establishment of

the Elsberry Holiness Mission. The
congregation now has its house of
worship at the intersection of Welch
Avenue and B. Highway, where the
first serviee was held September 7,
1953. Their pastors have beecn:” C.
C. Ham, Lawrence Schaper, and Ol-
iver Allen, .

The Elsberry TFree  Holiness
Church was established in 1950 gnd
is the ountgrowth of the Elsherry
Heliness Mission. Mrs. Ray IMills s
pastor,

Both churches have contributed
actively to the spiritual growin and
progress of the community.

In South Elsberry the MethoVist
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Episcopal Church was organized in
1882 by Rev. Lewiz Overton, the
Baptist Church in 1884 by Rev. Tur-
ner Donaldson, the A, M, E. Gaurch
in 1889 by Rev. Ed Poe, the Church
of God in Christ in 1923 by Rev.
Grant Dottom,

In the early days of the lown
great emphasis was placed on the
doctrinal differences which divided
denominations. A local wag related
that as he came down Fourth street
gne Sunday morning the congregation
pi the Christian Church on one side
pf the street were singing “Will
There Be Any Stars In My Crown”
while the Methodist on the other
side of the street were singing “No
Not One, No Not One,”

“Typical of the times was the in.
quiry of the small miss on her way
bome from Sunday services when she
asked: “Mother, why did the minister
talk so much about John the Baptist
without saying anything about Jesus
the Presbyterian?”

The second church building in the
town, the Cumberland Presby*erian
Church, was moved from the inter-
section of the Thompson Crossing
voad running west, with the Bluff
Road running north. The church had
stood for many years hefore the
establishment of Elsberry direetly
north of the intersection just across
the road from the old toll gate of
the gravel road and in recent years
had -declined in membership. The
Baptists offered to move the church
to Elsberry if the DPresbyterians
would grant them a half interest in
the building. The offer was accepted
and the church was located on the
corner lot at Sixth and DuBeis
streets. The arrangement proved to
be a very happy one and both con-
pregations grew and prospered. Dur-
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ing this period several ministers of
the Presbyterian church, notably Rev.

Deccard, Rev. (. Bell, Rev. T. Ber.
nard and Dr, Alonzo Pearson, men

of great power and schelarship, cont-
wibuted invaluably to the intellectual
ag well as the spiritual life of the
community.

In the late 80’s Rev. J. D. Hacker
became pastor of the Baptist church,
He was a brilliant man but a milit-
ant controversialist and introduced
the custom of preaching an annual
“doctrinal’ sermon in which he dem-
pnstrated conclusively the errors
of all other sects, especially on the
‘cardinal issues of communion and
baptism. He was accustomed to
adorn his discourse with piyuant
illustrations as “A boy drew a pie-
tare of a cow. After looking it over
he was afraid it would not he recog-
nized so he wrote under it. This is a
cow.” Likewise the Founder of the
church down the street, apprehensive
lest it not be recognized, figu-alive-
ly wrote under it “This is a Christ-
isn Church.” The effect on sister de-
neminations can well be imagined.
¥inally he callenged Rev. Wm. A.
Paton, a visiting evangelist of the
Tresbyterian ehwrrech with whom his
Baptist brethern were living in bro-
therly regard and commity to a pub-
he debate on the probity of the
fandamentai doctrines of the two
denominations, The challenge was
nromptly accepted.

Needless to say the debate attract-

ed great attention. The church was
crowded. No sueh congregations had
been seen before.” Aisles were jam-
med, windews and doors were 11led.
All over the church people stcod
during the entire program. While
applause was taboo in the churches
of that day, interest was intense and
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feeling ran at fever hest.

Rev. Hacker opened the debale by
announcing that he would uiterly
discomfit the opposition. Tn rebultal,
Rev. Patton quoted from the First
Book of Kings: “Let not him lhat
putteth his armour on boast 2¢ he
that taketh it off.”

The high water mark in the de-
bate was the interpretation o1 =a
phrage in the original Greek of the
New Testament offered by Rev. Pat-
ton. In response Rev. Hacker at the
conclusion of his speech laid a Greek
Testament on the pulpit and heid up
a twenty dollar gold piece ang of-
fered to give his opponent the goid
piece H he would correctly trans-
late a designated passage fiom he
original Grzek. Rev. Patton who Iad
taken four years of eollege Greek
promptly translated the passage and
Rev. Hacker handed over the nney
and the debate was over without any
issue having been settIed Shortly
thereafter Rev. Hacker removed to
Eoulder, Colorade where he hceame
a noted evangelist. And al]l rcont-
roversial agitation having beep with-
drawn on the local figld, peacs and
amity settled down onge mois over
the Elsberry churches and today co-
wyeration among the pastors in the
local Ministerial Alliance is reflected
in their respective congregations
which now work together in effect-
ual fellowship for the good of he
community and the Kingdom.

EDUCATION .

Ags soon as the depgt had heen
completed and the mushroom growth
of the town started, attention turned
to the guestion of a gchool for Rig-
berry. T was generally taken for
granted that the nearest district
school, the Cannon School, located on

thing in the nature of a surprise, it
not a shock, to the town Yooslerg
when at an election ealled for the
purpose, the proposition was defeat.
ed by =z decisive vote of the schogl
batrons.

Under
matter had not been sufficiently can.
vassed with the voters, a eampaigy
was organized and g second election
held in which the proposal Lo move
the school to Elshberry was defeated
by a still larger majority, Notuing
daunted, a third election was held
but reaction from the bitter rivalry
which had sprung up between New
Hope and Elshorry and persona: jeal-
ousies coupled with the fear of in-

ereased taxes, prevailed and for the

third time the vote was adverse.
Again the Founder led the way.
If the sclioo]l wounld not come to
Elsberry, then Elsberry would build
its own school, Again the Founder
donated the land and offered b:ick
from his own Lrickyard at a favor-
able figure. Stock was subseribed and
gold at $100 2 share and in 1823 a
two story brick building was eom-
pleted with two rooms down stairs,
ample accommodation for school pur-
poses, and one large unfinished room
upstairs which was available for
any worthy community purpose,
Among the activities aceomodated
was the Thespian Club with a mem-
kership made up of the young beaux
of the neighborhcod which from time

to time staged plays and enfertain-

ments in the “school hall” Espec-
inlly suceessful wag the play “Ten
Nights in 2 Barroom,” staged with
elaborate scenery and aecessories in

the Isaae Cannor_1 farm  en  the

Which Dr. T. V. Farmer plzyed the
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Browng Mill Road would be moveg
into town and the name changed tg [
the Elsberry School. So it was some. §

the assumption that the |

pather, Miss Nita Bailey, now Mrs.
d. R .Sanders, was the daughter
and Dr. Charles Powell, grandfather
of BEtta Jean, sang Old Blaca Joe,
then a new song, between curi:ains.
No culmination in all the dramatic
history of Elsherry ever provided a
greater thrill than when the father
threw the whiskey glass—whica was
caught by a stage hand in the wings
while another rattled a bex of bro-
ken glass—and Nita dashed tarough
‘the door with eranberry juice stream-
ing down her face and fell dying at
lhis feet. The women in the crowded

audierce sobbed openly and the men

cleared their thyoats stentoriously
wnd blew vociferously inte red band-
gna handkerchiefs.

The school opened in the fall of
1883 as an academy, for a ten months
kerm, at a toition fee of $2 per

mctth per pupil. Prof W. J. Seaman
1848-1924) who in 1882 married Miss

Frances Melinda Vance (1853-1935)
was principal. Both Prof S :aman
and Mrs. Seaman were graduates of
LaGrange College and later of the
Kirksville School of Osteopathy. Miss
Callie Towles, of Louisiana, and Miss
Nonie Elgin, of Clarksville, were
assistants.

The oceasion of the year was
the closing day with exercises in
which Miss Callie reelining on a
divan on the stage, directed a May
pole dance about a red and white
ribboned pele in the community hell,
indieating the reversals by snuapping
her fingers. To the fond_ mothers
and other patrons of the school
who filled the hall to ecapacity it
was an inspiring scene of ecullured
elegance.

As there was mno indication of a
change of heart on the part of the
voters in the neighhoring distriet,
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the school was continued the ivllow-
ing term with Prof. E. F. Nichols
(1864) as principal and Miss Sophia
Seaton (1862} in charge of the
lower grades. They wers marrcd m
1887 and moved with her bruther-
in-law, J. H. Voorhees (1859) to
Puseblo, Colorado where he was cvent-
nally elected to the bench of the 10th
Judieial District of Colorado,
It now became evident that cub-
seription school was unpopular and
a burden on the average citizen with
a large family. Aeccordingly negot-
jations were entered into with John
M. Gibson, the leader of the re-
waleitrants, with a view to arrang-
ing a compromise. Various duee-
ments were offered but Johm Gnm
was uncompromising, The only icrms
to which he would agree were for
the stockholders of the Klsberry
school to turn over their new Drick
building to the school district without
compensation or limitation of any
kind. And on those terms, exemptling
the tax payers of the district from
any of the costs of the new build-
ing, the voters finally consented and
the Cannon School became the Els-
berry School. However, all the con-
sequences were not nheecessarily ad-
vantageous. The school term was re-
duced from ien months to siz months
and loeal teachers sometimes barely
familiar with the three R’s took the
place of college trained teachers from
outside. The hiatus in the school
term was made up by Miss Clandia
J. Triplett and Miss Lorena Ellis
(1866-1928) who supplemented the
winter term with a two months sum-
mer tertn at the rate of $2 per
month per pupil.

Up to this time there was no
high school of any class in the
county. Through the years excellent

. 81




HISTORY OF ELSBERRY

secondary schools have been develep-
ed and begimning July 1, 1847 the 82
school districts of the couvly werse
gradually consolidated into the Tounr
present districts. By Webrnary 6,
1951 four high schools, approved by
the State University and the State
Departinent of Education, including
the Filsherry High School, were per-
manently established. ‘

Eventually the soft brick, of home
manufacture, in the schoopl bu.iding
burned with cord wood for fuel, be-
gan to crumble and at the turn of
tae century bonds were voted to re-
iplace it with the present grade school
‘on the original site. Still later the
school district having cancelled its
obligations, a second issue wag float-
ed and the first seetion of the pres-

ent High School Building was ron- |

strueted. In 1940 on applicatinrm to
the WPA an addition ineluding a
gymnasinm and auditoriom was ad-
ded at an approximate cost of $50,000
of which the school distrist paid
a little over $6,000 and the Federal
Government supplied the remainder.

On August 3, 1950 & Turther hone
issue of 245,000 wag voted for the
'purpese of bailding a,nci'(. equipping
a vocational edueation department
of domestic gelance and mangal train-
ing.

By 1955 an unprecedented Ineregse
in the school population of the dis-
trict, and the spproaching ntegra-
tion of the rolored student bedy,
rendered additional elass roorn s ,im.
perative and tae largest bond 1ssue
lever voted by the Elsberr}f patrons,
in the sum of $150,000, wus ap-
proved which, supplemented by a
State grant of $50,000; provided
$200,000 for the consiruction of zn
additional primary schoel building
to be located on the Wigginton Mill,

ican Logien.

With this addition Elsberry now
Yas oie of the most modsim and
msst comalete school plants Lo ba
fournd in a town of iis size anywherg
in the Missizsippi Valley.

Among thoss who have served ag
superintendent of schooly eince the
found'ng of tha city have boen.
~ Williamn J, Neaman

Edward ¥ Nichols

Wililam A. Dudley

Robert Sandersen

W, F. Schofield
- James W. Graves ‘

dohn A, DeTienne !
Asa G. Steele o
William J. Rowley '

8. P. Bradley g
0. A, Wilson ;
Theodore A. Hollman .
J. B. Rodgers ’

A, C. Floyd

W. H. Le¥ever

Frank Haleg

Fraoels B. MeCluer

Hermar L. Purdin

Two men in partieular 11 the
educational history of the eity are
entitled to special note, Howard G.
Colwell and Briton P. Taylor. it is
all the more remarkable that they
were contemporaries.

In the summer of 1897 a loeal
minister who had recently a-cepted
the pastorate of an Elsberry Chureh
decided to open an zcademy to ar-
ticulate with the senior year of the
Elsberry High School. He advertised
proposed academic and musical cours-
es in the Elsberry Democrat, issued
a printed prospectus and negotiated
with a teacher's agency for a prin-

cipal and a teacher of Plauo gnd
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onl a site purchased from the Amer.,

A. 0. Moore ;

Briton P. Taylor !

voice. The first week in Seplember
Howard G. Colwell, who had grad-

pated from William Jewell Coilege
the previous June and Misz Bessie
Lindsay, a graduate of a St Lonis
conzervatory of musie, got of® the
train asking for the minister who
was President of the Elsberry Acad-
emy. They had one interview He
told them the response to his adver-
tisement had been so discou.aging
that he had abandoned ths idea of
gtarting an scademy and had wmade
no arrangemenis of any kind for
a building or other incidevtals and
that he was resigning his pastor-
ship and weuld leave Elsber:y in
the next day or two. His propoeals
had been so satisfactory that they
had declined all other offers and it
was now foo lale to make other
arrangements for employment for
the sehool year. Making the best of
it, Miss Lindsay with the help of
sympathetic people of the town en-
rolled a large class of pupils and
enjoyed a number of successfuu years
as tacher of piano. Prof. Colwell
faced a more difficult sibustion. Bui
in the end he rented a vacant cot-
tage on Fifth Street, borrowed a
wmall table for a desk, and neigh-
bors donated a few chairs. He cuf
the weeds, replaced broken wmdow
glass, did a little necessary painling
and repair work and opened on the
fay advertised for the beginning of
the fall term. And then with perhaps
a dozen students began one of the
most important school years in the
lives of any of his pupils. Ha was

fn talented teacher, a man of the;

highest integrity, and he led his
classes to intellectual and spiritual
heights heretofore untouched. He was
active in g1l branches of chureh work.
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the community, either directly or in-
directly came in touch with im and
the effects of his life and tea hing
were plainly discernable fer many
Years after his work in PBisherry

was done. He later became President

+{ Buchanan College and subsequent-
ly Principal of Soldan High School
in Bt. Louis, and died of tuberculosis
superinduced by early years of priv-
ation.
Briton P. Taylor, a gradate of
Central College, came to Elsterry
us  Superintendent of School, in
September of 1898, He was remark-
able for what he taught outside the
textbooks of his academic courses.
His influence on the youth of the
school and community was prefound,
inspiring and lasting. Like Colwell
his works lived after him. From the
superintendency of the Elsperry
Schools he entered the ministry and
'held some of the larger pasloistes
in the South, ineluding those sf Kan-
sas City, Misgouri and Charleston,
Zouth Carelina. On several oceasions
when a hishopric was to be fil'ed he
was within a few votes of election.
it is not too much to say thal tnese
two extraordinary men, by a strange
coincidence econtemporaries, within
the space of the few years of their
wervice in the loeal schoels, complete-
1y changed the idesls and standards
of that generation of young men and
women.
THE ELSBERRY PRESS

Another young man who seemed
destined 4o exert a profound in-
fluence on Elsberry affairs was
Heary F. Childers who came to
Elsberry in 1880 from Westm.uster
College and gave Elsherry its first
newspaper. Up to this fime the only
newspapers in Lincoln County had

Practically every boy and guol in

been published at the county seat,
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double barrelled shot guns. The roh,
bery seemg tg have been a “tiegy,
*ul proceeding in 8very paricula,

Under the fashion notes [p thig
early copy of the Advance for the
year of 1880, the reader is informey
that “the betrothal bracelet Somag,
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New Hape, the second largest towa,
i and Auburn the third largest town
: in the county had never had g news-
paper. But Elsberry, a railroad town,
drew young men ag 5 magnat lraws
fren. And on October 8, 1880, lienry
Childers, just 21 years old, pulished
the first issue of the Elsberr; Ad-
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torney he resumed his legsd practice
and in 1902 was elected Probate
Judge and served for eight years.
He returned to Kilsherry in 1910
but was never again associated with
newspaper work,

In Feburary of 1884 Powell sold

arently mno reasonabla offer was
?fused. So it was not surprising that
lenumber of prospective purchusers
iade bids to buy the paper almog:t
il"rom the time the first isoue hit
;,he street. But the future w_as pr{_)-m-
jsing and Childers had as his assist-

: . illiam T. Reed
times takes the place noyw of thy nt an expert typesetter W. D. ng- the Advance Pto_n‘f;ﬂ]e relatea b.\,;
vance. Tn g “Salutatory” editorial engagement ring and is worn on the a‘ns known affecticnately as billy iformerly of Payne ’
[ the editor announcad that “Foliti- left zrm.” B

niarriage to Mrs. Hugh A. Staaven-
gon. In May, 1885 Reed sold to J.
W. Powell and Robert T. Robinson.
In July of 1837 Robinsen sold his

If interest to Richard H. Wommack
E%r the year 1888 the paper was .

published by Powell and Womack. e
Jn the meantime Hurley M. Cornick i

Wigpins and he whetted the a@petili_'.es
of prospective pur<_:hasers py c.le.:‘c in-
irg to place a price on the piper.
Lowever, in March of 1581 the
pressure became too strong and he
sold a half-interest in the paper to
; W. Powell and in December of
:1.1& same year sold Powell ths re-
maining half of the Elsberry paper
and bought from W. J. Knoit 2 half-

eally, the Advance will be sirictly
and unwaveringly Democratic at all
times and under ajl cireumsly: ces,
The National, State and Ceunty De-
moeratie tickets are to be foung at
the head of oyr columns whicn {g gn
indication that they have our .}l\,arty-
support.” The tickels referped 16 in-
eluded Winfielq 8. Hancock for
President ang William [, English
of Indianz for Vice Piesident, The
State ticket listed 7. 7. Critenden
for Governor, Aylett H. Buckner for

Two columns of this #irst editioy
are devoted {o g description of the
Lew flouring mill then under eonsg.
vuction hy the Elsberry Milling Com.
pany incorperated in May, 1880 with
Wm. L. Meclantogh as President, Hey.
vy S8, Carroll as Vice Pregiden: ang
B. C. Welch as Secretary, Through
this mill were tg Pass in the yearg
ghead mllions of dollars woiih of
wheal, corn and ather grain with |
their products. :
The paper

had moved the “Lincoln County
News” fromy Troy to Elsheriy and

265 two enterprising young mer, Charles
interest in the Troy Free Prsss, the -
Jntme?'l becoming Ward ard Child- |5, Huckstep and B.’.ob.ert J. B :?}EY; )
Tl'OYI n;lptember of 1882 he buught|had started publishing the 8- .
ers. In be

also  carries

. y » i
cutent | wapd’s interest becoming the sole bel(;y gla:e::;;tion of J. W. Eowell e
; Congress and (ol Thomas G. Hutt quatations of prices of stapla com. proprietor of the Troy Free P_IESS' ) }.I: -osecuting Attorney, he soid the
i for State Senalor. Champ Clark, of {modities cn the St. Louig markets; The transaction was probaly an|Bs Prosec s ’
Tike County was the Demoeratic

choice catile at $56.10 to $5.8u .
tive cows st $2.25 to $3.00, hogs at
$3.50 to £56.35, wheat at 94¢, eorn
at 38c, butter at 25¢, egps ar 14e,

Advance to Cornick and it was mer-
ged with the Lincoln County Mews,
Tn his valedictory of PFebrua~y 7,
1895, the last issue of the Elsberry

unfortunate one so far as Elsb‘t‘]:'l‘y
was concerned. Powell was a rizing
young lawyer and while he was a
talented editor he would perbaps

candidate fop Presidential Hlector,
Frominent on the county tieke: wag
Howard 8. Parker for State T Lpres-

. ! o ! writes “I havz been

entative and A. C. Snethen for sher- [tobacco, then the cash CrOP ON &Very | ..o done better to have concentrat- Advancv& Pogﬁl tg paper for alout

(] y iff. ¢ - farm in the courty and marketed at ed on his law practice and Elsuerry | connecte \ther the first of Manch
it Incidentally, it ig inferesting o |the Tinsley Tobaceo Co, at Louw’ang 5 years.

would have retained Henry Chilaers,
note that the above candidates wape

reported elected but as 2 Iater issge
of the Advance points out, “Hanp-
cock wag cheated out of the Piesid-
ency which was awarded by a part-

ivan commission to Chester A,
thur.”

Tlustrative of the
ried in the first issue
berry Advance is a news item

. >
times,

borting the robbery of a stege coach

Letween Pierce City,
Eureksy Spring,
vious week by gix men
kerchief masks-

Missour

o tha Els-

Arkansas tpe pre-
wearing hand-
and armed with

or the Boone Tobacco Company at
Clarksville, at 36.00 to 3700 per
cwt.
The Advance seems to have been
8 profitable investment from the
Ar-|start, According to the anneunce-
|ment at the mast head of the raper,
1200 initial coples were printad and
distributed gratis and the bhublic were
invited to subseribe. The Subserip-
tion rate was $1.25 a year Ag it
later developed thig AMOUn. was
gfometimes paid in eordwood, egps or
vegotables and cometimes in kawng or
country made sorgum molasses, Ap.-
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car-

Te-

and

one of the most dynamic personalities
£ his time.
CfJ?E;unes; Watson Powell (1855-_1924)
son of Watson Thomas Poweli and
Sarsh Washington Zimmerman, mem-
ber of the firm of Wallon, Avery
znd Powell until April of ISSO.W}IED
ke moved from Troy to Elsveiry,
was admitted to the bar in O?,tob.er,
1879, married Anna Eliza Whiieside
in 1881, editor of the Elsherry Ad—
vance from December of 1881 1v 1304
when he was elected Prosecuting At-
torney of

Lineoln County. Ailter

I will move to Troy.” And ia. TRls-
berry Advance hag ceased t.o exist,
Times were hard. A depression was
cn., And business does not seem to
have prospered with the Neows and
a few months later Cornick aband-
oned the field to the Gazeite and
ntoved his plant to Hardin, Iumois
where in a destructive fire the %ack
files of the Elsherry Advance were
destroyed. In fact as late as 1908
it was announced that all Ffiles of
zll papers ever published in Bls-
berry had been destroyed.

serving 4 years as prosecubing at-

On March 27, 1900 James T. Walk-

41




HISTORY OF HEIJSAB ERRY

er bought the vemaining pape:  the
Elsberry (Gazette and changed iis
name to the Elsherry Democrai, tn-
der which name it has been pablish-
ed ever ginee, In 1902 Walker sold
tne paper to the Mayhall brelpers
and accompanizd by his friend and
plant foreman, Gorden Crank, moved
to Welsh, Louisiana where they pub-
lished the Rice Belt Jeurnal. In -908,
Laving sold the Journal, they re-
fmrned to Elsberry and Walker agein
became owner of the Elsberry Demo-
crat selling a half interest on Dee-
ember 1 of that year to Crann. In
1923 Gordon Crank became the sole

owner end uvnder his manapgement
the Democerat entered on gz veriod
vnsurpassed  editorially angd ‘:;,peo-
graph]_eally by any similar perod in
tae history of the Klshérry press
Following his untimely  deaih 1n

1946 the family continnes the pub- |James

Yication of the paper under the stand-
erds and trasditions set by him in
kis long and brilliant caresr,

WHew Salem Lodge.
A F.o& AL M,

New Hope Lodge of Aneient, breg
#nd Accepted Masons No. 193 wa;
cha}'tered May 31, 1869, just at tha
E)fag;nrlizlg of the OCivil War. 'l‘h(;
E.uzu-ter was signed by the Grang
;-iaster of the State, Mareus Me-
Parland, of Lirecln Counly wiu g
the time was a resident of Troy
“he lodee wnos moved from I\Te‘q;
Hape to Elekerry in 1u94, Eure it
las had a distingnished history ang
has been henore¢ with three Uhirty-
Third Degree Masons, Robert it
filack 33 dagree, Roscoe Bruos Eack
23 degree and Avthur Liyndoa Gilage
ey 33 degree. On the dube of pub.
lication, of the first issue of lhe
Elsberry Advanee, the lodge  was
2lill meeting at New Hope and Dy,
3. Long, great-grandfathey
of Jamas Gordon Welch, who is :lso

a grandson of Gordon Cranx, and

Editors who have served under the [Who bears the name of both arand-

Estate thave

been Hurley Crank,|fathers, was

Worshipful  Master,

John M. 8elf, R. H. Jackson, R. Ter_ |James O. Baskelt, a great-grea* uncle
gusor, M. H. Alderson, W. Stamper |of Michsel Reid ang Bobby Trail
. " + ¥

and 8. A. Howard.
FRATERNAL © -

was Secretary of the Lodga. The
_ Baskett Family, one of the oldest
One of the interesting féatures of |snd most distinguished in the coun-

the fivst edition of the Advance is!ty, has long been intimately identi-

the column of announcements of log-
pes and other fraternal organiz.lions,
Long before the building of the C.
5. and Q. railvoad A. F. & A. M.
and I. O. 0. F. lodge
chartered at Auburn, Ndw Hope, |,
Burr Oak and New Salem. As the|,
towns of Elsberry, Feoley and “Yin-
field developed along ths ralioad,

i

fied m:h Freemusonary and i each
generation members of the Lamily

tave “passed through the chairs”

had been)of the lodge. At a time when trans.

-ortation was difficult and no 1zdio,
elephones. television or wnl de.

bhvery of mail or daily newspapers

and the original sites of the leages|™cie available the monthly sossicrs
became ghost towns, the lodges were |cf these fraternal bods 3
moved to the new towns but retained meeting  the Saturday i:f‘):;“?}]l:

the' original names as wrilten in I
tha'r charters. The Masonig lodpe at

ull moon in each month, wers not-

Elsberry still bears the name of eble oceasions and members would

New Hope Lodge No. 199. The lodge | T

ide long distances to attend and

sl Foley is still the Burr Oak Lodge [then retrace the roag after lodge

and the lodge at Winfield i the |

closed. At New Salem, regularly, and
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ot other lodges from time t» time,
the lodge had contracts with local
pousewives who timed their baking
to turn out leaves of hot hsead,
which were served with large crocks
of freshly churned butter and huge
pote of strong coffee when the lodge
Josed. Members thus fortified would
hkead their horses back throngh mel-
Jow moonlit nights or through snow
and sleet and storm on their way
home.

Beginning with the first Worghip-
ful Master of the Lodge, whose ser-
vice dated from 1860, the long line of
distinguished men who have presid-
ed over the deliberations of the
l.odge include: A. F. Downing, John
Black (brother of Robert E. Bizek)
Dr. James W. Welch (father of
James C. Welch), T. J. Neely. Dr.
Geo. W. Vaughn, Henry ¥, Wells,
John D. Cox, Dr. James Long, (eo.
W. Hammack, Will H., Baskeit (fat-
her of L. T. Baskett), Isaa» White-
gide, R. E. Black (father of R. B.
Black), James I,. Dawson {(falker of
F. L. Dawson), M. 8. Alloway, J.
G. Bradley, W. W. Watts, James C.
Welch, C. C. Eastin, Iir. C. E. Powell
{father of Dr. C. W. Powell), Floyd
Calloway (father of Carlyle Lalio-
way}, J. J. Shaw, L. T. Baskett, F.
L, Dawson, 8. R. Hoover, Harry R.
Penick, Dr. James N. Damvon fal-
her of Dr. G. . Damron), W. 5.

Sanders, Joseph R. Pazlmer, Robert
Trail, Jos. K. Palmer (father of W.

& Palmer), W. J. Palmer, R.
Plack, Harry Ross, H. K. Cunning-
Tam, Claude B. Lilley, Clarence H.
Feix, Dr. G, W. Powell, T. Louie

Wells, HHarvey E. Powell, Wm. A
Ulery, Jr., L. W. Trescott, Carliyle
Galloway, Charles W. Miller, W E.
Long. F. L. Palmer, Otis Hammrck,
G. Jack Jones, Norman C. Evans, E.

TPalmer Cox (brother of Thompscn
Cox), Jesse K. R. Langford, 2. J.
Vann, Thompson Cox, Wayne B,
Lefiwich, Forrest Brooksher and Lon
H. LaRue, now serving in 1355.
1. 0. 0. F.

The Elsberry I. 0. O. F., tue Ind-
ependent Order of Odd Feiows,
Deadwood Lodge No. 382 was insti-
tuted at New Hope February 28,
1878 ang was moved from New Hope
10 Elsherry in May of 1835. At the
ime of the first publication of the
Advance, Dee F. I'oley, a nephew
of Addison Toley, of New Hape,
was Noble Grand and W. 4. Jap)
Cannon was Secrefary of the Louge.
it is related that when it was pro-
pesed to buy an organ for the use
of the Lodge the Secretary, who
cnlivened lodge dinners and nther
festive oceasions by playing the
banjo, closed tne dehate py asking
sententiouly “If we had arn urgan
vho'd pick it?” The Cannon Family
has been associated with Denivwood
Lodge from its earliest history and
Otto B. Cannon, great-grandfatnsr of
Charla and Brenda Howard, promin-
ent for many years at sessious of
the Grand Lodge of the State, served
ag Conductor in the exemplifica®ion
of the ritual in practically every
jurisdiction in  Northeastern His-
souri,

Among the Noble Grands wko have
presided over the Lodge are: W. D.
Dudley, A. H. Kercheval, W. .

. { Nash, I. N, Cannon, Otto B. Canmon,

I. B. Metts, Willlam A. Duadley,
Ferry J. Cannon, D. E. Dever, W, P.
Morton, J. R. Cannon, H. H. Ash-
Faugh, W. W. Omohundre, Mont,
P. Elsberry, William A. Ulery, W. D,
Bradley, John Brother, Charles W.
Illis, James Metis,
Terry, Albert J. Cannon, J. K. Pal-
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mer, Kdward 8. Morris, BEd. M:zAll-
ister, Henry Humphrey, Dr. Foiest
V. Keeling, Gordon Crank, 8. Price
Pleener, Jesse B, Ellis, R. C. Dixon,
Dr. W. N. Lowrey, Gsorge C. Leven-
good, William B. Ellis, L. W. Crank,
a. B. Wilkinson, C. L. Busaman,
Charles 8. Huckstep, J. T. Dewarey,
Thomas C. Smith, John #. Watls,
W. R. Cannon, James T. Rice, Shar-
les W. Miller, M. Burley, Charles C.
Brown, B, D, Hardesty, J. V. White-

ide, Dr. J. M. Beard, J . Newman,
Cecil W. Cannon, ¥, H. Brinkran,

Tlmer L. Mayes, Lewis Tres:oit, .C.
H. Feix, Frank Bowion, Dr. Edwin
‘R. Whiteside, Roy M. Burchelt, Har-

vy T. Palmer, Herman L. Cuxdin,
Wilford L. Cramer, Wiley F. Lons-
berry, 0. IHI. Kanoy, L. L. Me-
Bride, Clifton KMiller, Ernest Bowlon,
Cecil Fines, Charles- Machir, Fraik-
lin Miller, Virgil Weeks, Wiliam
Reid, Repinald Waits, Charics Poole,
Farold Ligon, Walter MeClelland,
Russell Gladney, Bugene Dunean,

George Swan, Ivan Hammond, Way-

ne Werges, Stanley DIresley, Harold
Ives, HTugo Branham, Charles John-
gon, Sidney Wipke, James M. Calla-
way, Joseph Lilley, Alfred; Fsrmér,

Harvey Hatfield, TFloyd Tusriull,.

Ivorman Blakey, Fuzene Pumer,
Hurlay R. Crank, Robert Zumwesl.
It wonlg be impossible to esliraate
the far-reaching influence af Odd
Fellowship and Freemasonry on Els-
kerry and its people and its Tlistory,
through the classic langpage of
their rituals, the love of liberty and
free government and the profound
truths and high ideals which they
inculeate. From these fwo frater-
nities have come the men who have
Teen lenders in every worthy civie
¢nterprise in the history of the city.

- Pawell, 1915 Mollie Thonas

L ¢, E. 8.

Elsberry Chapter 39 of the Eastern
Star Lodge was organized January
25, 1902 and received its charter
under date of October 31 of the same
voar. Through its chairs have pas-
sed many of the representative
women of the city and the adjacent
gountryeide.
Worthy

Matrons of  Elsberry

-Chapter No. 39, order of Faster Star

are: 192 Maitie Rose (Mrs John
W.) Alvis, 1904 Jennie Waters (Mrs.
Dr, Steyhen H) Kerr, 19056 Miss Amy
Reid, 1908 Kate Hemphill (Mrs. Jno.)
Cochran, 1909 Jessie Fisher (Mrs,
Judge W. W.)} Reid, 1910 Miss Lor-
ena Ellig, 1911 Miss Lena Alloway,
1013 ®Wtia Jamison (Mrs. Dr. C. E2
{B¥pa,
Frank L.} Dawsen, 1915 Fannis Mul.
herin (Mrs. Gabrfel) Pamvon, 1918
Minnie Callaway (Mrs, L Tewis}
Trescott, 1919 Cynthia Palmer (Mus.
Tlmer T.) Brother, 1923 Mary Fllis
{(Mrs. D. K.} Knapp, 1925 Lillian
Dawson (Mis. W. Beaton) Sanda.s,
1927 Oneida Cochran (Mrs. W. R)
Cannon, 1929 Vesta Green (Mrs. Dy
C. B.} Lindsay, 1930 Irene (Mirs.
Harry) Brinkman, 1931 Gexrda Cobb
{(Mrs, TFloyd O.) Galloway, 1922
Ciarice Gentry (Mrs, A. L.) Gladney,
1933 Isa Smith (Mrs. L. W.) Tres-
cott, 19834 Gussie Brown (Mrs. d.
I.) Shew, 1935 Melba Mayes {(17rs
Dy, . W.) Powell, 1836 Mary Ann
Green (Mrs, Howard K.) Walis.

11957 Margaret Trescotl (Mrs. Cenil

W.) Cannen, 1938 Mary Bailey (Mrs.
Wm. A) Ulery, 1939 DBIary Redd
{Mrs. Clinton 1.} Alloway, 1840 Miss
Mildred Baskett, 1941 Nell Millard
{Mrs. Paul H.) Gibson, 1942 Virginia
Banks (Mrs. Carlyle) Galloway, 1943
Anna Laura Baskett (Mys. Maleohm}
Trail, 1944 Mary Ross (Mrs, Christ-
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izn) Meyer, 1946 Winona THobbs

Jlarice Gentry (Mrs. A. L.) Glad_

('I‘rtfrs. Russell) Taylor, 1946 Mary ney, 1929 Irene DPollard i3

Mﬂlf‘;" (Mrs. G. Jack) Jones, 1947(darry)  Brinknvan 1931(; 1§ e
Nettie Luckett (Mrs. B. F.) Gladney, Rowbotham, (Mrs ’ Harry T lfl’mle
}948 Frances Waits (Mrs, Jack)|rner, 1831 Albertslt Elshes;r }'Ma-
Vann,18489 Tsabelle Rogers (Mrs.[W. Q) Taylor, 1933 Isa.SmiZh l'\‘I]::S.
Ra.ymonci) Miller, 1950 May Bur-|Tewis W ) Trescott, 1934 \‘Vilﬂ('lf‘1 sil
Tbildge (Mrs. Clardy) Moss, 19561 | Whiteside (Mrs. Joe], Langford ‘]1;35
Lelia  Graham (MMrs. lon) Gray, |Ruth Langford (Mrs. Arch? T, 1

1952 Helen Whiteside {(Mws. Wm. rane 1)

H.) Machir, 1958 Kathryn Trescott
(Mrs, (F’Garlan) Ricks, 1855 Ruth
Tiller {Mrs. Harcld) Ligon.

1929 Verna Elsberry (Mrs. Frank L.)
Palmer, 1940 Eileen Jamison (Mrs.
Joseph} Gladney, 1441 Pauline Dry-
den (Mrs., Clifton) Miller, 1042 Vir-

REBEK AHS ginia Hearin (Mrs. Charles) Machir,
Elsberry Rebekah Lodge No. 1943 Miss Sadie Hunt, 1944 Addie
415, the auxiliary to the 0dd|Bvyd (Mrs. Thomas N.) Harpole,
Pellows Lodge, was organized 1946 Alene Norton (Mrs. Luther)
end charaered May 12, 1906, The Seprass, 1948 Pearl Smith (Myrs.
women who have occupied *a rhairs J(Z‘T‘\;erett)wl‘?;'l{m, 194%%1.{21?”?11 Cole
_ o s vivs. illian B
?ggi:zl cog;?cub:i‘:l I;‘f:f;ilg ‘:‘(L)e ﬁ"‘f’ Anita Strus ?ﬁi}?ﬁ Jamg: ‘:I?Iri C;ﬁgg
’ O fway, 1951 Aungusta Corbin

the community.

The roll of those who have pres-
ided as Noble Grand of the Order
include: 1906 Minnie Lindsay (Mrs.
Mdward 8.) Morris, 1907 Mattie Bro-
ther( Mre, Benjamin D.) Eisberry,
1908 Annie Robinson (Mrs. C. C.}
Ferry, 1908 Cynthia Palmer (Myrs. E.
E.) Brother, 1910 Lizzie (Mrs. John)
Humphrey, 1911 Annie Jeffries (Mrs.
Jogeph R.) Wilkinson, 1912 Beatrice
Sanders (Mrs. Mont P.) Elsberry,
1918 Ida Miller {Mrs. Clarence) Feix,
1914 Mollie Lowrey (Mzrs. Dr. C. A.)
MeAfee, 1915 Emma Fields (Mrs.
John 8.) Watts, 1916 Dora Milden-
stein (Mrs. BEd. 8.) Metts, 1917 Susie
Bradley (Mrs. Nide E) Cobb, 1220
Edith Bvans (Mrs. George C.)
I evengood, 1921 Nettie  Luck-
ett Mrs., B. F) Gladney, 1922
Elizabeth Pryor (Mrs. J. V.)
Whiteside, 1923 CGouchie Pal-
mer (Mrs. Rommie E.} Cramer, 1025
Mary Triplett (Mrs. Val. W) Waters,
1926 Miss Georgia Huckstep, 1928

4

(Mrs. Charles) Johuson, 1952 Mrs.
Jathryn  Graham  (Mrs. .Harald)

Ives, 1953 Hazel QCoffman (Mrs.
Trorest) Davis, 1954 Ruth Anna (Mrvs.

Eugene T.) Taylor, 1855 Haittie
Meyer (Mrs. Joe) Lilley.

THE GRANGE
A surprising number of G ange
lodges is reported. The Grange, tne
cldest farm organization in America

today, and at that time a politieal
power throughout the New England
states and agriculiural West, and
which is still active in many states
vf the TUnion although completely
forgotten in thiz immediate section
of the country, reported eight rhap-
ters widely distributed over the
county, Among them, as listed in
the Elsberry Advance of October 8,
1880, was the Star Hope Grange No.
1868. Isaaec Cannon, great-great-
grandfather of Richard Cannon
Mayes, was Master and W. C. Sleet,
the great grandfather of Ruth Ann

5
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Mayes Taylor, was Secretary of
the Crange which was advertiseg as
meeting at the Star Hope Bchool
House the fourth Saturday 'n each
month. '

AMERICAN LEGIGN

Elsberry Community Pest No. 226,
of the American Legion, was organ-
ized and eharfered in Oclober, 1919.
Tis first home was acguired in 1948
through the cooperstion of Pauiine
Wigginton who' sugpested tre sale
of the Wigginton home for approx-
imately the amount then in the lost
treasury, $8,000. This property was
sold in 1953 io the Elsherry School
Dixtriet for $20,000 and the present
home of the TPost on Highway .'79-
writh amble grounds and ex.cusive
buildings was aequired in Tebraary
of 1054, The TLegion Commarders
t.ave heen: Otto T. Crank Dr. F. V.
Tiggs, Dr. J. M. Beard, Curtis Tay-
lor. Ralph Graham, St., T. ¢. Knapp,
lra‘ 7. Langford, Dr. C. W. Powell,
7, Elmo Foley. G. Jack Jones,
'Carlan Ricks, R. Bugene Duncan,
Johnm W. Steward, T. ¥. Manning
Jesse K. R. Langford, Wm. B, Wag-
goner, Boy M. Burchett, Fr'afnk Phil-
lps. and Ralph Humphrey.*

AMERICAN LEGION AUXILIARY

The American Legion Anxiliary,
Unit 226, auxiliary to American Le-
pien Post 226, was organized under
the sponsorship of Commander G.
Jack Jenes in October, 1946 and re-
ceived its charter in November of
that year. The benevolences of the
anxilisries are not confined to vet-
sians and thelr families but inclnde
pairiotic serviee to community, state
snd nation. The Elsberry . Auxiliary
has contributed genercusly to the
social and civie life and welfare of
the entire community. .

President of Unit 226 are Idrs,
O'Carlan  {Kathryn)  Ricks, Mrg.
Fpgene (Sara) Duncan, Me=. O. C.
(May) Kessler, Mrs. Harold (Ruth)
Ligon, Mrs. Bylvester {Ruth) Ker-

[ pash, Mrs, Torrest (Ilazel) Davis.

P. E. O.
AT Chapter of the P. B. O, Sister-
food was
2904.
tor  have

organized Oectoher 3§,
Chap-
Leona Nuckolds

Presidents of ihe

Leen:

Jusnita Sanders, Mary Alleway,
Elizabeth Keeling, Nell Gibson, Mol-
lie Dawson, Lilie Alexander, Inlian
Elizabeth Trail,
Trascott Palwer, Martha IElsLervy,
Annie Powell, Etts Powell, Tlorence
Palmer, Martha Rose, Anne Palmer,

Lou FEilis, Alberta Taylor, Nele
Bradley, Margaret Cannon, OUneida
‘anmon, Mary Jones, Isa T.escett,
Viola Ringhausen, Mary Luey How-
srd, Mary Stevenson, Gerda Gallo-
way, Margorie Fisher, Vesta Lind-
cavw, Fnestine Lahr, Ellen Morrow,
Wothryn Ricks, Margaret Gladney,
znd Isa Treseotf.

HISTORY CLUB

Clegely following eame the various
women’s federated chibs whizh have
sdded so much to the cultural and
intellectual life of the eity:

The History Club, organizeyq in
1905, wag affiliated with the State
Tederation in 1811 and admdsted te
the General Federation in 1913, Pres-
idents of the Club have. been. Miss
Jessie Black, Mrs. H. H. Palmer,
Misg Lydia Ferry, Mrs. Robert I'igh-
er, Mrs. L. W. Crank, Mrs. . H,
{Lucile) Heinemann, Mrs. W. E.
Long, Mrs. T. G. Howard, M:s. Ev-

Sandars, ilinme

1erett Watson, Mrs. J. I. (Virginia)

_Among those who have served =a

| Heinemann,
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A. B C,

The A. B. C. Club (Arts, Books
and Crafts) was orpanized and
federated in October 1926, Tis pres-
jdents have heen: Pauline Cannon,
fathryn Crank, Alberta Taylor, Mary

Tawey Howard, Isa Treseott, WMar-
garet Cannon, Bessie Ellis, Mary
Ann Watts, Aldulia Chamberlain,

Vesta Lindsay, Melba Powell, Frances
Clark, Kathryn Gladney, Grace Tur-
ner, Rosa Branch, Tamey Catherine
Weeks, Dorothy Fischer, Jessie Dud-
1ey, Frances Vann, Dorothy ¥opitke,
Mildred Mitchell, Edna Mae Furdin,
Adeline Reid, Pauline Mitler, Clarice
Gladney and Frances Mallinckrodt,

JESSIE BLACK CLUB
The Jessie Black Club, named for
1 beloved sponsor, was orgapized in
April, 1982 and federated in June
of that year. Its presidents include:
Mrs. Joe Langford, Mrs. Jepathan
Glurke, Mrs. John Gibgon, Mrs, Ray-
mond Miller, Mrs. BEdwin Whileside,
Mrs. Tom Chamberlain, Mrs. Arch
Taylor, Mrs. Nick Riffle, Mrs, Sid
Vortman, Mrs, Ralph Humpirey,
and Mrs. Robert Hull. ’

FORTNIGHTLY
The Fortnightly Club was organized
Ceptember 20, 1938 and fedesrated
CGetober 8, 1938. Those serving as
President have been: Mrs. Charles
Levengood, Mrs. Irvin Van Mabre,
IMrs. Qlon Gray, Mrs. Val Waters,

Brs. Willlem Machir, Mrs. Earl
Galloway, Mrs. M. O. Dizon and
Trs. Hallie Temple.

D. ™. C.

The DNC CLUB (Daughters of the
New Century) was organized in 1633
and federated January 8, 1934. The
Presidents were: Mrs. Charles Kelly,
Mrs. Harry Brown, Mrs. A. T. Pal-

Wipke, Robert E,

lin Miller, Mrs, Maurice Bartee, Mrs.
Tom Burks, Mrs. Raiph Galloway,
Mry. Douglas Ringhausen, Mis. E.
G. Damvon, Mrs. W. O, Howard, Mrs.

Thomas F. Manning and Mrs. H. R
Sanders, Jr. )

A, E. P,

The A. E. P. Club (Alpha Epsilon
Pi} was sponsored by the D. N. C.
b and was organized in Oclober
of 1941. It was admitted to the Btate
Federation iIn 1942 znd in the same
—ear to the General Federation. Mrs,
Delmas (Bennie Berkley) Geollert
served as the first president. She
has hesn succeeded by Miss BMildred
Parker, Mrs, Joe (Grace Beauc'.amp)
Clark, Mzrs. Harold (Xatherine
Graham) Ives, Mrs. Ralph {Anna
Mae Whitaker) Ferguson, Mrs. For-
est  (Hazel) Davis, Mrs, Harvey
(Faye) Walden, Mvs, Marlow {(Shir-
ley) Briscoe and Mrs. Charles {Sue)
(lzdnay.

STUDY CLUB

 The Elsberry Study Club was esi-
ablished in August of 1944, Iis pres-
iding officers have been: Mrs. Clrrdy
Mose, elected in 1944 and fellswing
ner, Mrs. Wm. Gray, Mrs. Forrest
Brooksher, Mrs. Robert Hensley, Mrs.
Harvey Walden, Mrs. Guy Ray, Mys.
Robert Canady, Mrs. Earl Pflas.erer,
Mys, Ray Kammeier and Mrs. Chris
Meyer.

KIWANIB
The Elsberry Kiwaniz was organ-

ized June 12, 1950, chartered August

8, 1950 and is one of the most active
and successful of the business and
benevolent organizations of  the
community. The Presidents hrave been
Clifton Miller, Ralph Galloway, Sid
Parks, Wayne

raer, Miss Virginia Tate, Mrs. Frenk-

Werges and O’Garlan C. Ricks.
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THIRD ANNIVERSARY

The first notable social event in
the life of the new town was the
celebration of the third anniversary
of its founding held in a grove of
primseval forest just aeross the rail-
road bridge, east of the railroad
and south of the Creek, on land now
2 part of the Erosion Contrel Mur-
gery. Here was staged a widely-ad-
vertised ali-day pienie with special
invitations to the old seitlers who
were envolled as they reached the
grounds, with the date of their mig-
ration to Missouri and the name of
the state from which they came. The
Prairieville band (Eolia had not yet
come into being) was engaged for
the ocession and “disroarsed sweeh
noasic? during the day uatll some of
the key performers became so cn-
thusiastic as the result of enjoying
tie hospitality of friends and ad-
mirers as to no longer be in poziion
to participate. Two beeves, 27 shecp
andl ten hogs were barbecucd and
althoagh the attendance broke an
loeal records no one went{ away
hungry. The prineiral attraciipn of
the day were formal addresses by
Fion. Howard 8. Parker, of Troy, a
voung atterney of oxceptional ab-
ity who represented the commty in
the State legislature, and » THon.
David A. Ball, of Louisiana, a mem-
Ler of the Siate Senate, subsejuen-
tly elected Governor of Migsouri. as’
elaimed by unprejudiced friends, but
“swindled out of the Governorship
by unprineipied city mrachines.” “Gov-
ernor Balt” (1851-1928) who,was 2
very able but very homely man, of
the Abe Tincoln type, deliverod an
cloguent pairiotic address suitable
to the ceeasion in the course of which

ELSBERRY

he indighantly denied charges by his
opponents that he was, “two-Taced.”
“Heaven lmows,” he salg, “If T had
another faee I would wear it

Parker (1853-1886) a
Fayelie County, Kentucky who had

native of

moved to Missouri early in youth and
who had served as prosecuting ut-
torney of the county before election
to the Hoase of Representative, dis-
sussed a motre serios and conirover-
sial guestion. A highly guestionabla
gronp claiming o represent Wall
Civent intercsts, and systematically
canvassing Chambers of Commeree
~ud county couris in railread-hungry
inland counties, had organized a
seourt house ring” in Lincoln County
and was offering to build a railroad
ncross the couwniy if a bond issue
was voled to pay a part of the ex-
penses, Parker, alert to the pro-
posed fraud, fought the combine re-
presented by Bonfils  the County
Clerk and had received ancaymous
letters threatening his life i he
did not withdraw his opposition to
the bonds. Parker had the courage
of his convictions and was not to be
ntimidated. A short time bafore in
n personal contreversy abeut an en-
tirely different matter he had en-
geged in a pistol duel with Richard
Henry Norton (1849-1918) whs had
just been elected io Congress, and
had steod in the middle of the strveet
calmly returning Norton's five until
the smmunition in his six-shooter
was exhausted and Norten was
wonnded, When the newgrapers an-
nounced that he would speak at Els-
1erry, a second letter came advising
him that i he mentioned railrozd
bouds n his sveech he would be
chot down., Altheugh it was ex¢ess-
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ively hot weather, he ippeared on

the picnic grounds wearing a long’
Prince Alberc coat, a popular gar-
ment in that day, and one which
belt and-
pistels the wearer might be carrying.
The crowd had by this time beeome,

concealed any cartridge

so dense that a wagon was backed

wp in the pienic grounds and Parker’

climhing up into the wagon, made

a Dblistering speech charging ecrime.
and malfeasance in the handiing of,
the bonds. He left the grounds un-|
molested but his wise advice . wae|

unheeded. Beguniled by the bait of
a railroad cleverly dangled before

the [public, the bonds were voted and’

turned over %o the promoters but

the ratlroad was never buit. After
in which the|

county tried to void the obligation a
|reagent, as a elabilizer in fusing

many court battles

compromise was finally reached

ander which the bondholders wered

paid 60c on the dollar and the tax-

payers got mnothing. UnfOL’tunately:—f ) .
it was not the last time the public] of acid soils, The development of
was to be defrauded by clever pro-§ .o

Y P lutilization for these purposes and it

moters looking after their own In-

- terests.

~ Events now began to move in rapid
sequence. ' i

Tn October of 1903 a franchise was
granted to the Buffum - Telephone
Co, which installed g switehboard on.
the second floor of the Foley Build-
ing. In 1906 it was sold to Missouri
and Kansas Telephone Company and
in 1812 wag absorbed by the Bell Co.
of Missouri, and became a part of
the Southwestern Bell Telephone Co.
June 1, 1924. Dial operation was
pdopted November 3, 1953 and it is
today one of the most modern and
efficient systems in the State.

Lincoln and Pike Counties, was or-

ganized as a municipal corporation
in 1911. It embraces appreximately
'20,765 acres, of which 12,816 acres
is in Lincoln County and 7,949 =zeres
in Pike County. ’

In 1901 the Crystal Carbonats
Lime Company, of Louisiana, leascd
land on the Muff south of town and
opened a commercial quarry. In
geologie times the Gulf of Mexico
extended north ahmnost to the Canad-
ian line and sediment was deposited
in layers over thounsands of wvears,
eventually forming the strata of
limestone bheing quavried today. This
particular bluff has been pronounce!
the. purest (98%) calcium carbonate
to he found from Minneapolis to New
Orleans., When first guarried, it was
used as flux in smelting iron ore,
in the sugar industry as a bleeching

rlass and for domestie purposes such
as commereial chicken grit and as
culiural lime for the neutralization

befter processes, however, has limited

is= now sold largely for construction
and agrienliural uses.

Subsequenty the Crystal Carbon-
ate Co. withdrew and the Columbia
Quarry Co., of St. Louls ook over
the bosiness, and has maintained a
substantial pay rell appreciated by
the husiness men of the frade ter-
ritory. ' '
Elsberry business men promoted
the first gravel road in the couniy
and organized a stock company which
built five miles of toll road from
Elsberry to New Hope. It attracted
so much attention that August Bus-

l¢h, at that iime head of the An-
The Elsberry Drainage District of]

henser-Busch Brewing Co., came vp

from St. Louis to see it. He was met
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at the station by the Mayor and a
group of business men and the dele-
eaticn was driven to New Hope and
tack in buggies drawn by spirited
horses especially commandeered for
that purpose. At that time a huge
elm tree grew heside the perennial
spring on the Louis Wingfield farm
two miles west of town, now owned
by T. C. Howard. So vast was the
coverage of this giant tree that it
extended from the spring to the road
and out over the road forming an
arch under which the Mayor’s party
jrove. Mr. Busch was greatly im-
cressed by the free and paused and
discussed it on the way out. On the
return trip he asked about the owner-
shin of the farm and when told that
the land had recently passed to Mrs.
Wingfield on the death of her hus-
hand, asked to see her. When in-
sroduced to Mrs. Wingfield, he agked
Ler what price she would take for
Ler farm, It was evident that he wsas
disposed to pay any reasonable price
to get the tree. But Mrs. Wingfield
explained that she had lived there
ever since her marriage and wished
to die there, and could not find it in
her heart to sell it. He thanked her
courteously and returned to St
Lounis and a few months later bought
the land on which he developed his
great estate near Pasadena, Cali-

fornia.

In 1924 a group was organized to
bLring a factory to Elsberry for the
employment of surplus labor. Twenty

thousand dollars was contributed and’

a building was erected and leased
to a St. Louis shoe company and
opened January 15, 192b. The pro
ject was not a success and in a short
time operations were discontinued
and the building was turned back to
ihe promoters, Eventually it was

deased to Wells-Lamont Co. mani-

facturer of gloves and except for
a brief interval during which a strike
closed the factory, has operated con-
tingously ever since on terms entire-
ly satisfactory to all concerned. Iis
pay roll has been =z material factor
in the business of Elsbherry mer-
chants and professional men.

The Elsberry Experiment Station,
conducting research work in the util-
1zation of Wabash <lay, locally known
as gumbo, and supported exclusive-
ly by Federal funds under the man-
agement of the University of Mis-
souri, operned in March, 1928. Since
its establishment, funds in exeess of
$100,000 have been spent, principally
in experiments in the culture of rice
and soy beans. It has perfecied sys-
tems of culture and developed new
and valuable strains, and has made
Wabash Clay one of the most pro-
duetive of Mississippi River bottom
goils.

On August 22, 1923 announcement

was maae of the decision of the Fed
eral Government to establish nine
=oil eongervation nurseries in as many
states, including one at Elsberry,
Missourl. For this purpose $630,000
was provided by executive order, of
which $70,000 was allotted to the
Elsberry station. Arthur D. Slavens
was assigned to the station. Land
was acquired and construction was
sturted and the plant was in full
operation by 1986. Of the nine orig-
inal stations only three remain, one
of which is the Elsberry station.
of whieh is-- =a,wsca mw mwin
*The nursery has this year dis-
4zibuted approximately 20,000 pounds
of grass and legume seed to more
than 300 soil conservation disiricts
in Missouri, Iowa, Illinois, Min-

nesota, Wisconsin, Michigan, Indiana,
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Ohio and Kenhicky, Sodding and
sprawling, spreading types to e
used in ferrace outlets, grass water-

ways, erosion points :nd pastures

vhere depletion is excessive have

pneutv

"All tillable land in the United States
is now under cultivation, There are
1o new lands to be ozened. With ou
rapidly  increasing” population and
our steadily shrinking s,uppI),-r of
arable land for the produection of
food, erosion control is becoming one
of our most pressing domestic pro-
‘blems, It would be diffienlt to est-

" imate the amount of land saved to

cultivation by the methods and mat-
¢rials supplied by this important
ngency of the U. 8. Department of
Agriculture,

In 1936 the Works Ploe‘,'les:. Ad-
ministration. announced. approval and
alloeation of funds for the’--ccnstljuc-_:
tion of a water and sewer systems
for Elsberry. The work was handled;
ty. the most expert government eng-
ineers to be sacured * .and Elsberry
hecame a modern city over wight
The total cost amounted to §140, 100"
of which the ecity provided $36, 963

_ond the Federal government $103,187,

To repreduce the system at this time
w% preseent brices of labor and mat-
erials would cost more than twice
the amount spent at the time.

‘One of Elsberry’s most attrarckive
assets iz the Forrest Keeling Nur-
sery, established in 1938, cperat'ng
nn extensive plant embracing sev-
eral hundred acres and maintaining

‘a large foree of professional and

tecknical employees. Under the dir-
ection of Hugh Steavenson, the Pres-
‘Cent of the Corporation, it hag de-
veloped a wide mail order business
supplementing its local sales offices.
One of their specialties is the famous
Multiflora Rose developed for hedge

ELSBERRY

Zenci ng purposes and advertised by
the frmiliar slogan “Horse high -
Bull strong - Goat tight.” But this
extraordinary rose is only one of the
many beautiful and servieable shrubé,
trees, plants and evergreens which
the nursery shizs to practically every
state of the Union.

Mr. Steavenson, a graduate of the
great agricultural college at Ames,
and for a decade a ranking siaff
member on nursery research in the
J S. Department of Agriculture, is
ohe of the oulstanding nursery. ex-
perts of the nation and the Forrest
Keeling Nursery is one of the show
places on Highway 79 between ot.
Louls and Keokuk,

RECESSIONAL

- With all this progress it g still
wagy to hark back to the day when
“The Old Man” came dowp Fifth
street with a yoke of oxen, without
halier or harness, only the yoke. He

‘was walking along beside them cariy-

ing & ‘goad, a slender rod of oak
eight feet long with mointed tip. As
fie approached DuBois Sirest ho
soid  “Haw.”  Instantly without
change of pace the nxen swung to
the left down DuBois, At the intar-

seetien  with Fourth street, “Gee®

|and the two swung automatically to

ihe right without further word or
pesture from the master. ’
But with all its changes he woull
not be so much ovt of step with th-
times were he here today. He had
the capaeity of adapiaticn. And he
nad the supreme gift of common
sense, :

Not that he was especially gifted.
Me was in every sense a very ord-
inary man. And ke was intensely hu-
msn. But sooner or later, he wasg en-

gaged 'in practically every class of
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brsiness activity of his time and
Iocality except the saloon business.
Usually motivated by his desire to
ceoperate In any enterprise which
promised to contribute to the growth
of the community, he was at times
a participant for cther reasons. He
was a4 man of strong lkes and dis-
likes and did not hesitate to take
drastic measores when he thuoght
the gituation warranted them. Among
those unfortunate enough to ineur
‘his antipathy was Clement L. Gen-
nie who with his mother lived near
Faimouth and when the railroad
came through, moved to- the new
town, Both were charter members
of the Elsberry Baptizt Church when
it was organized in 1883. Gennle was
an sactive, energetic man, interested
in many enterprises and was the first
to cul ice from King's Lake and
store it underground in sawdnst on
2 commercial seale. Before the in-
vention of the iee machine and mod-
ern refvigerators, practically every
heuseheld had an  “ice box"” and
commmercial ice was in practically o

ivarsal demand in both business and

private houses. Gennie msde # 5

paying enterprise. Bul immediately

“Uncle Bob” became a competitor
and with the capital at his command
underseld Gennie and foveed him
ouf ‘of ‘busincss: Gennie then opened
a butcher shop and prospered tem-
vorarily until Unecle Bob opened &
shop-in competition and again foreed
im into bankruptecy. In Gennie’s

st effert to stay in business hel

opened a brick -yard on the southwest
corner of DuBeis and Sixth street.
The clay was dug acress the sireet
from the yard and vast quantities
of cord wood were censumed in the
process. No =sooner had Gennie
started his brick yard than Unecle

Bob started a yard on the alley
nexf to DuBois between Fifth and
Fourth streets and for many years

a large pond adjacent to the present

Methodist parsonage marked the
excavation where the clay was dug
Here was burned the brick that weng
into the church and school on Fourin
street and into most of the chim-
neys of the new houses in the vi-
cinity.

Unable to sell his briek in
competition witn Uncle Bob’s

prices, Gennie used them to build
the first brick house erected in REls-
berry on the site now occupied by the
Christian parsonage., But his mother
having died in the meantime he fin-
ally gave up the uneqgual strugple
and moved to Texas destitute, teav-
ing behind bills he was unable to
mest. Two or three years afterward
his creditors begain fo receive let-
ters from Nim enclosing payments
on his obligations and when all his
debts had been liquidated he re-
turned to Elsberry on a visit as a
Holiness minister. He brought with
him the first complete Bible concor-
dance ever seen in Elsherry, a vol-
ume ghout the size of an unabridged
aictionary, which he earried about
with him when he visited old ac
goaintances, finding for them their
favorite smeriptural references and
making it an oceasjon to discuss with
taem their spiritual welfare. Hav-
ing completed his visit he retmrmed
to Texas and was never heard from
agaif.

Uncle Bob was himself a man of
indefatigable industry. Even In his
Inter years when he was among the

low

wealthier men of the community and
lived in the most pretentious liome
in Elsberry, he engaged in daily man-
ral labor. In his T4th year, hauling
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rock for the foundation of one of his
buildings on a drowsy afternoon, he
fell asleap holding the Ynes and
when the wagon jolted over an oh-
streetion in the road was threwn
vnder thd wheels. Aunt Ceil was one
of the first to reach him and held
him in her arms. But he had passed
on to a Greater City than his beloved

Eisherry.
The calendar read October 14,
1881,

In the most Iargely attended ob-
sequies in the history of the county,
with such porap and ceremony as the
times afforded, he wag laid to rest
in the family cemetery on his farm
at the outskirts of Elsberry.

Founder of town and church andithig

school, a man of exemplary life, an
example to the youth of his day in
industry and sobriety,

ENYOIL

Elsberry will never be a big town
with slums and police control and
all the problems that heset great
centers of population. We should be
thankful for that. But it will always
be one of the delightful residencs
towng of the state, where we Imow
our neighbors and our neighbors
know us and where daily association
develops a fellowship and a com-
munity of interest to be achieved
in no other way. We live in a rapid-
ly changing world, Miracles are just
ahead, And in that expanding futurs
Klsberry and Elsberry people have
their special part and place.

In closing, some who have read
narrative have thought that
perhaps- I have told too much,

Ah, my {riends, you should hear

he builded ; what [ have not told!

hetter than he knew.

Finig
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